
Planning Commission – Special Meeting Agenda 
April 17, 2014 

1 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

Special Meeting April 17, 2014 
City Hall Thursday 
East side of Monte Verde Street Tour – 2:15 p.m. 
Between Ocean & Seventh Avenues Meeting – 4:00 p.m. 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Commissioners: Steve Dallas, Chair  
Jan Reimers, Vice-Chair  
Don Goodhue  
Michael LePage 
Keith Paterson 

II. TOUR OF INSPECTION

Shortly after 2:15 p.m., the Commission will leave the Council Chambers for an on-site
Tour of Inspection of all properties listed on this agenda (including those on the
Consent Agenda).  The Tour may also include projects previously approved by the
City and not on this agenda.  Prior to the beginning of the Tour of Inspection, the
Commission may eliminate one or more on-site visits.  The public is welcome to follow
the Commission on its tour of the determined sites.  The Commission will return to the
Council Chambers at 4:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible.

III. ROLL CALL AND REORGANIZATION OF COMMISSION OFFICERS

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS/EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS

VI. APPEARANCES

Anyone wishing to address the Commission on matters not on the agenda, but within
the jurisdiction of the Commission, may do so now.  Please state the matter on which
you wish to speak.  Matters not appearing on the Commission agenda will not receive
action at this meeting but may be referred to staff for a future meeting.  Presentations
will be limited to three minutes, or as otherwise established by the Commission Chair.
Persons are not required to give their name or address, but it is helpful for speakers to
state their name in order that the Secretary may identify them.

1



Planning Commission – Special Meeting Agenda 
April 17, 2014 

2 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Items placed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and are acted upon by 
the Commission in one motion.  There is no discussion of these items prior to the 
Commission action unless a member of the Commission, staff, or public requests specific 
items be discussed and removed from the Consent Agenda.  It is understood that the staff 
recommends approval of all consent items.  Each item on the Consent Agenda approved 
by the Commission shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as 
recommended. 

  
1. Consideration of draft minutes from March 11, 2014 Regular Meeting 

 
2. Consideration of draft minutes from March 25, 2014 Special Meeting – Workshop 
 
3. AD 14-02 

Bench Dedication  
Randell Bishop 
Mission Trails field adjacent   
to Flander’s Mansion  

Administrative Determination (AD 14-02) for 
the proposed site of a new bench in Mission 
Trail Nature Preserve 

 
4. DS 14-13 (Assemi) 

Cheryl Assemi 
Casanova Street, 4 SE of 12th 
Block 134; Lot 8 
APN: 010-175-017 

Consideration of a Final Design Study (DS 14-
13) application for alterations to an existing 
residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

  
VIII. CONSENT AGENDA (PULLED ITEMS) 
 
 (This is a placeholder to be used only in the event that one or more items are pulled from 
 the consent agenda.) 
 
IX. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

If you challenge the nature of the proposed action in court, you may be limited to raising 
only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing described in this 
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the Planning Commission at, or prior to, 
the public hearing. 
 
1.  DS 13-120 (Tope) 
     Andrew & Lara Tope 
     Forest Road 2 NW of 7th Ave. 
     Block 83; Lot 7 
     APN: 010-041-007 

 
Consideration of a Final Design Study (DS 13-
120) application for alterations to an existing 
residence located in the Single-Family 
Residential (R-1) Zoning District    

  
 
 

2



Planning Commission – Special Meeting Agenda 
April 17, 2014 

3 

 
2.  DS 14-14 (Hawley) 
     Charles Hawley 
     Santa Fe St. 5 SW of 8th Ave. 
     Block 100; Lots 9 & 11 

              APN: 010-053-003 

Consideration of Concept Design Study (DS 14-
14) and Coastal Development Permit 
applications for the demolition of an existing 
structure and construction of a new residence 
located in the Single-Family Residential (R-1) 
Zoning District 

  
3.   DS 13-149 (Sturdivant) 

Nicki & Don Sturdivant   
Camino Real 7 NE of Ocean 
Block FF; Lots 20 & 22 
APN: 010-251-027 

Consideration of a Design Study (DS 13-149) for 
alterations to a historic residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

  
4.   DR 14-08 (Bell) 

James & Catherine Bell 
Mission 3 NE of 8th Ave. 
Block 89; Lots 14 & N ¼  
of 16 
APN: 010-087-016 

Consideration of a Preliminary Design Concept 
for the construction of a new single-family 
residence located in the Residential and Limited 
Commercial (RC) District 

  
5.   UP 14-03 (The Tea House) 

James Bull 
NE Corner of Mission & 7th  

(Carmel Plaza)   
Block 78; Lots All 
APN: 010-086-006 

Consideration of a Use Permit (UP 14-03) to 
establish a specialty restaurant in an existing 
commercial space located in the Central 
Commercial (CC) Zoning District 

  
6.   UP 14-09 (Windy Oaks Winery)    

Jim Schultze 
Lincoln 4 NE of 6th Ave. 
Block 55; Lots 10 & 12 
APN: 010-138-019 

Consideration of a Use Permit (UP 14-09) to 
establish a retail wine shop with wine tasting as 
an ancillary use in an existing commercial space 
located in the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning 
District 

  
7.   UP 14-04 (Mundaka’s High Tide)  

Gabriel Georis 
San Carlos 2 NE of 7th Ave. 
Block 77; Lot 16 
APN: 010-141-005 

Consideration of a Use Permit (UP 14-04) to 
allow live music at an existing restaurant/bar 
located in the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning 
District 

  

8. Resolution 14-01 
Capital Improvement Plan 
Review 

Review of the FY 2014/15 Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) for consistency with the General Plan 

3



Planning Commission – Special Meeting Agenda 
April 17, 2014 

4 

 
X. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
 
 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The next two meetings of the Planning Commission will be: 
 

Special Meeting – Thursday, May 15, 2014, at 4:00 p.m.  
Regular Meeting – Wednesday, June 11, 2014, at 4:00 p.m.  

 
The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities.  
Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall is an accessible facility.  The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 
telecommunications device for the Deaf/Speech Impaired (T.D.D.) Number is 1-800-735-
2929. 
 
The City Council Chambers is equipped with a portable microphone for anyone unable to 
come to the podium.  Assisted listening devices are available upon request of the 
Administrative Coordinator.  If you need assistance, please advise the Planning 
Commission Secretary what item you would like to comment on and the microphone will 
be brought to you. 

 
NO AGENDA ITEM WILL BE CONSIDERED AFTER 8:00 P.M. UNLESS 
AUTHORIZED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION.  ANY 
AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING WILL BE CONTINUED 
TO A FUTURE DATE DETERMINED BY THE COMMISSION. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Planning Commission regarding 
any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Planning & 
Building Department located in City Hall, E/s Monte Verde between Ocean & 7th 
Avenues, during normal business hours. 

 

4



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

1 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
PLANNING COMMISSION – MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 11, 2014 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL FOR TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
 PRESENT: Commission Members:  LePage, Paterson, and Reimers, Vice Chair   

Goodhue, and Chair Dallas 
 
 ABSENT: None 
  
 STAFF PRESENT: Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning & Building Director 

 Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
 Bryce Ternet, Contract Planner 
 T. J. Wiseman, Contract Planner 
 Daryl Betancur, Acting Commission Secretary 

 
II. TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 

The Commission convened at 2:45 p.m. and then toured the following sites:  
 
1. (DR 13-40) Greg Schultz:  Lincoln 4 NE of 6th, Block 55; Lot 14 
2. (DS 13-136) Cal & Carol Daks: SW Cor. Lincoln & 3rd, Block 32; Lot 1 
3. (DS 13-146) Cathryn Carlson: NE Cor. Ocean and Carpenter, Block 64; Lots 2, 3, 4 & 

5 
4. Gas Explosion Site: SW Cor. Guadalupe and 3rd; Block 40; Lot 1 
5. (DS 13-96/VA 14-01) Joan Buchanan: Acacia 4 SW of Flanders, Block 102; Lot 22 
6. (UP 14-02) Tudor Wines: NW Cor. of Mission and 7th; Block 77, Lots 15, 17, 19 & 21 

 
III. ROLL CALL  
 

Chairman Dallas called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. All Commissioners were present. 
 

IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Members of the audience joined the Commission in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
V. ANNOUNCEMENTS/ EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

Daryl Betancur, Deputy City Clerk, notified the public about the upcoming City election on 
April 8, 2014, and announced that voters may deliver their ballots to City Hall or return 
them by mail. 

 
  

5



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

2 

VI. APPEARANCES 
 

1. Jeffrey Blair, Blair Estate Tasting Room, commented on the staff report for UP 13-7 that 
was discussed at the February 11, 2014 Planning Commission meeting and wanted to 
clarify that Blair Estate is a separate business from Shale Canyon and that each of these 
adjacent wine tasting rooms have separate Use Permits.  
 

2. Karen Williams, resident, spoke regarding concerns she has with excessive lighting in 
the City.  She provided a list of locations that appear to be violating City lighting 
regulations.  

 
3. Barbara Livingston, resident and CRA President, concurs with statements of Ms. 

Williams.  She also wanted to make sure that interior lighting violations are addressed 
too. 

 
4. John Prader, Shale Canyon Vineyards.  Concurs with comments by Mr. Blair, and 

provided a letter noting their concerns with not being considered as two separate tasting 
room establishments. 

 
5. Steve Whaler, resident, concurs with construction project on San Antonio that has been 

underway for an excessively long time. 
 
Rob Mullane, Community Planning and Building Director, noted that he would refer the 
lighting concerns and the associated list of addresses to Code Compliance staff for follow-
up.  Mr. Mullane also noted that correspondence previously submitted by Mr. Jeffery Blair 
was distributed to the Planning Commission, and clarified that UP 13-07 was continued at 
the February 11, 2014, with no action affecting the respective Use Permits for the Blair 
Estate and Shale Canyon wine tasting establishments.  Mr. Mullane also clarified that 
complaints related to Code Compliance can be received anonymously.  Mr. Mullane 
provided information on the City’s regulations for construction noise and duration of 
construction.  

 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Consideration of draft minutes from February 11, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

Chair Dallas noted that staff had distributed a slightly revised set of minutes for this 
meeting.  No other comments by the Commission or the public. 
 
Commissioner PATERSON moved to approve the consent agenda. Motion seconded 
by Commissioner LEPAGE and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, REIMERS,  
  GOODHUE  & CHAIR DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

6



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

3 

ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 
VIII. CONSENT AGENDA (PULLED ITEMS) 
 
 No items. 
 
IX. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
            1.   UP 13-17 

      Firok Shield 
      San Carlos 3 SE of 5th  
      Block 57; Lot(s) 10 

Request for the Re-Consideration of a Use Permit 
(UP 13-17) to establish a retail wine shop with wine 
tasting as an ancillary use in an existing commercial 
space located in the Central Commercial (CC) 
Zoning District 

 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report and clarified what the item for 
consideration was.  Mr. Wiener noted that three letters regarding this items were received by 
staff and had been provided to the Commission.  Mr. Wiener noted that the City did receive 
an appeal of the Planning Commission’s approval of this item. 

 
Chair Dallas opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Mark Manzoni, Manzoni Vineyards, spoke in support of the reconsideration 
and recommended a moratorium on new wine tasting rooms until the Wine Tasting Policy is 
revised.  
 
Speaker #2: Paul Owen, resident, with comments on the application.  Spoke in support of 
not having the application reconsidered. 
 
Speaker #3: Firok Shield, applicant, provided some history and information on the 
application process and his proposal.  He spoke in support of the application and against 
reconsidering the application. 
 
Speaker #4: Barbara Livingston, resident and CRA President, spoke in support of 
reconsidering the application.  She noted that requirements for an 02 license and for 
Monterey County wines are crucial components to include in the revised policy.  
 
Speaker #5: Jack Galante, Galante Vineyards and the Wine Walk, noted that the Wine Walk 
has conferred on the wine tasting policy and this application.  He noted that a Type 02 
License is required for a tasting room and discussed the differences between a wine tasting 
room and a liquor store or wine tasting bar. 
 
Speaker #6: Marie Antoinette, co-applicant, provided additional information on the 
proposed licensing for the proposal.  They currently have a Type 17/20 license, but would 
be securing a Type 02 license.  
 

7



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

4 

Speaker #6: Jeffrey Blair, Blair Estate Tasting Room, spoke about TTB and ABC licensing 
requirements.   
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing. The Commission 
discussed the request.  
 
Commissioner LEPAGE moved to deny the reconsideration.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner REIMERS and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, REIMERS, and CHAIR DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: PATERSON and GOODHUE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 
The Chair explained the rationale for his vote, and noted that because of the appeal, the 
proposal would be considered by the City Council.   

 
2.  AD 14-01 
     Bench Dedication                       
     Linda Smith(Friends of Spike) 
     E/s Lincoln Bet. 3rd & 4th  
 

Consideration of an Administrative Determination 
(AD 14-01) for the acceptability of a public bench 
dedication to an animal recognition group in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

T.J. Wiseman, Contract Planner, presented the staff report and summarized the request. 
 

Chair Dallas opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Carol Daks, resident and neighbor, spoke in support of the request.  
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing.  The Commission had a 
brief discussion of the request.  
 
Commissioner PATERSON moved to accept the plaque to Spike.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner REIMERS and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: GOODHUE, LEPAGE, PATERSON, 

REIMERS, and CHAIR DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 
3.  UP 14-02 
     Jon Sapp (Tudor Wines) 
     NW Cor. of Mission Street     
     and 7th Avenue   
     Block 77; Lot 15, 17, 19 & 21 

Consideration of a Use Permit (UP 14-02) to 
establish a retail wine shop with wine tasting as an 
ancillary use in an existing commercial space located 
in the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning District and 
Consideration of an Application for a Commercial 
Sign (SI 14-11) (Tudor Wines) 

8



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

5 

 
Commissioner Reimers recused herself from the discussion because she owns property in 
proximity to the project site and left the dais. 
 
Mr. Mullane noted some observations from the Tour of Inspection and some questions that 
had come up regarding the respective floor area for the tasting room component and the 
retail component and then turned over the presentation to Bryce Ternet, Contract Planner. 
 
Mr. Ternet, presented the staff report and summarized the request, and noted that the 
applicant should clarify the floor area questions.  The Commission had questions on the 
proposed signage.  Mr. Ternet noted that staff prefers the flatter option for the main sign.  
The Commission reiterated their question on the respective floor areas.    
 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Jon Sapp, representative for Tudor Wines, provided additional information on the proposed 
seating.  He noted that all areas other than the bar are retail areas.  He noted that he provided 
information on hours of operation for other wine tasting establishments in Carmel.  He 
clarified that the serving size is proposed to be 2 oz not 1 oz as noted in the staff report.  He 
clarified the current signage preference for the applicant and that there are two directory 
signs also proposed.  
 
The Commission had concerns regarding the feasibility of all of the back area being used for 
retail display.  The Commission also noted that drawing was not to scale and that the 
proposed seating was not too small to be functional, and the bar would fit a lower number of 
seats than what was shown.  The Commission had questions on the feasibility of storing 
wines in this location.  The Commission asked about the location of the vineyards and the 
winery.  Mr. Sapp noted that the grapes are from Monterey County, but the winery is in 
Paso Robles.  
 
Chair Dallas opened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: Scott Caraccioli, Caraccioli Cellars and Wine Walk by the Sea, spoke in 
opposition to the request.   
 
Speaker #2: Kim Stemler, Monterey County Vintners and Growers Association, spoke in 
opposition to the request.  Noted that the City’s Wine Tasting Policy encourages both grapes 
from Monterey County as well as the winery being located in Monterey County.  
 
Speaker #3, Barbara Livingston, noted questions regarding the retail display areas and the 
proposed hours of operation.  She noted concurrence with the points raised by Ms. Stemler. 
 
Speaker #4, Jon Sapp, representative for Tudor Wines, read a letter from David Fink in 
support of the request.  
 

9



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

6 

Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing.  Mr. Mullane noted that 
cross sections are included in the staff report.  Mr. Mullane sought clarity on the hours of 
operation is the Commission opts to approve the project.  He also provided additional 
information on the signage and the floor area break-down.  The Commission had a brief 
discussion of the request and noted their concerns.  The Chair noted that the legal dispute 
that one of the speakers noted is not pertinent to Commission’s consideration of the request.  
 
Commissioner PATERSON moved to deny the application.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner LEPAGE and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, GOODHUE,  
   & CHAIR DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS 
 
The Commission took a brief recess, following which, Commissioner Reimers returned to 
the dais. 

 
4.   DS 13-148 
      Fiallo/Martinez  
      W/s San Antonio 5 S Ocean     
      Block C1, Lot(s) 5 

Consideration of a Plan Revision application for 
alterations to an approved Design Study (DS 13-148) 

 
Chair Dallas reconvened the meeting.   
 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report and summarized the request.  The 
Commission had questions on the existing approved design including the stone wainscoting; 
these questions were addressed by Mr. Wiener.   

 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Philippe Tardivet of Montblanc Construction, general contractor, went over the project 
status and request.  He addressed a question on the chimneys.  
 
Mr. Wiener went over the request regarding the chimneys in comparison to the 2 chimneys 
that were previously approved.  The south elevation chimney would be a metal flue.   
 
Chair Dallas opened the public hearing. There were no speakers.  Chair Dallas closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Commissioner LEPAGE moved to accept the application as submitted with conditions 
of approval identified by staff.  Motion seconded by Commissioner REIMERS and 
carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, GOODHUE,  

10



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

7 

  REIMERS & CHAIR DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
5.  DS 13-136 
     Cal & Carol Daks 
     SW Cor. Lincoln & 3rd    
     Blk 32; Lot 1      

Consideration of Final Design Study (DS 13-136) 
and Coastal Development Permit applications for the 
construction of a new residence located in the Single- 
Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report including a summary of the issues that arose at the last 
meeting, the revisions to the project to address these issues, and that staff had received 
letters in support of the application from various neighbors.  He noted that the applicant may 
want to revise the gable by the chimney. 
 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Terry Latasa, Project Architect, went over the project revisions and clarified the request for 
further revising the gable behind the chimney as well as the plan for the parking pad.  The 
fireplace would be Carmel stone clad. 
 
Chair Dallas opened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: James Gill, neighbor, spoke in support of the application.   
 
Speaker #2: James Nagel, neighbor, spoke in support of the application, and read a letter in 
support of the project from another neighbor, Donald and Renata Winsch.   
 
Speaker #3: Joanna Owens representing William Taromina, neighbor, spoke in support of 
the application.  
 
Speaker #4: Amy Jeffrey, neighbor, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing.  The Commission had a 
brief discussion of the request. 
 
Commissioner PATERSON moved to approve the application.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner LEPAGE and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, GOODHUE, 
  REIMERS, & CHAIRMAN DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
 

11



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

8 

 
6.  DS 13-96/VA 14-01 
     Joan Buchanan 
     Acacia 4 SW of Flanders  
     Block 102; Lot 22 

Consideration of a Design Study (DS 13-96) and 
Variance (VA 14-01) for the addition of an attached 
garage to an existing residence located in the Single-
Family Residential (R-1) Zoning District 

 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report including a summary of the request and the reason for 
the Variance.  Mr. Weiner noted the deck’s encroachment onto the neighboring property and 
that a condition of approval is recommended by staff to address this issue and that additional 
site coverage be removed, potentially with grass-crete at the front of the property.  Mr. 
Wiener noted that staff received a letter from a neighbor expressing concerns about untidy 
conditions and potential fire hazards.  Mr. Wiener noted that staff could look into this and 
work with the applicant to resolve any problems. 
 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Glenn Warner, project architect, noted concurrence with most of the conditions of approval 
except for Condition #21 (site coverage reduction); he suggested a waffle grid instead of 
wood chips.  Mr. Warner also noted an objection to Condition #24 (addressing the deck 
encroachment) and wanted to know if they could get relief on that.  He noted that he had a 
couple letters in support of the project from neighbors and presented these to the 
Commission.  He noted that if they need to comply with Condition #24, they would cut back 
the area of the deck. 
 
Chair Dallas opened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: Joan Buchanan, applicant, had questions about the letter received by staff today 
and spoke in support of the request.  Mr. Wiener provided her with a copy of the letter.  
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing.  The Commission had a 
brief discussion of the request. 
 
Commissioner LEPAGE moved to accept the application with conditions recommended 
by staff and with the change to Condition #21 to remove the concrete in the front area 
of the lot and replace it with a combination of grass-crete and wood chips that is 
acceptable to staff.   
 
Prior to the vote, Chair Dallas asked the applicant if they accepted the revised conditions of 
approval.  Mr. Warner requested an additional revision to Condition #21 anted the driveway 
portion (approximately 10-feet in width) to be allowed to be an impervious surface such as 
paving stones. In response to Mr. Warner’s input, the Commission amended the motion as 
follows: 
 
Commissioner LEPAGE moved to accept the application with conditions recommended 
by staff and with the change to Condition #21 to remove the concrete in the front area 
of the lot and allow an impermeable paved area for the driveway with a combination 

12



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

9 

of grass-crete and wood chips elsewhere in the front that is acceptable to staff.  
Amended motion seconded by Chair DALLAS and carried by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, GOODHUE, 
  REIMERS, & CHAIRMAN DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
            7.  DS 13-146 
                 Cathryn Carlson 
                 NW Cor. Ocean & Carpenter     
                 Blk 64; Lots 2, 3, 4 & 5    

Consideration of a Design Study application for the 
installation of fiberglass windows and exterior siding 
changes on an existing residence located in the 
Single-Family Residential (R-1) District. 

 
T.J. Wiseman, Contract Planner, presented the staff report and summarized the request.  She 
distributed a table regarding site coverage for the Commission’s consideration, as this was 
not included in the staff report, but excess site coverage was noted as a concern during the 
Tour of Inspection.  She also provided a color handout of the proposed siding to the 
Commission. 
 
The Commission had questions on the new window material.   
 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Cathryn Carlson, property owner/applicant, summarized the request and presented the 
window sample to the Commission.  She noted her concurrence with the conditions of 
approval recommended by staff. 

 
Chair Dallas opened the public hearing. 
 
Speaker #1: Jerry Stefanik, builder working with applicant, spoke in support of the request.  
He noted that the proposed windows would fit the style of the building better than wood 
windows.  
 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant about the trees that are proposed for removal.  Ms. Carlson 
pointed these out: one in the entry courtyard and an acacia tree on the Ocean Avenue 
frontage and that replacement plantings were not required.  She also clarified for the 
Commission the proposed window changes and which window was to be enlarged.   
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing.  The Commission had a 
brief discussion of the request and noted overall support for the proposal.  Commissioner 
Goodhue had concerns regarding the aesthetic of the garage doors and would have preferred 
that a redesign to the doors was included.  Chair Dallas noted a preference to include a 
requirement to plant one new upper-canopy trees.  Commissioner LePage noted that the site 
is currently substantially over on amount of site coverage and that a possible location for a 

13



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

10 

new upper-canopy tree would be near the northeast corner of the property with the removal 
of some of the concrete in that area.  He would like to see some of the site coverage 
removed.  Commissioner Paterson concurred that this was an opportunity to reduce the site 
coverage and that removing a substantial amount of the concrete in the driveway area would 
improve the appearance of the property.  He recommended a new condition of approval to 
this effect.  
 
Commissioner LEPAGE moved to accept the application with modification to the 
special conditions to remove the concrete from the front of the property and work with  
staff to come up with a design that substantially lessens the paving in that area and 
with the additional special condition that an upper canopy tree be added in the 
northeast corner of the property.  Motion seconded by Commissioner PATERSON and 
carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: GOODHUE, LEPAGE, and PATERSON 
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS and CHAIR DALLAS 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
 
Prior to the vote, the Chair asked the applicant to note concurrence with the revised special 
conditions.  Ms. Carlson noted her concern with the requirement to remove site coverage.  
The Chair asked staff to comment on the revised conditions.  Mr. Mullane noted that this 
was a Design Study and therefore changes to the project or conditions of approval related to 
aesthetics and better compliance with the City’s Design Guidelines are appropriate.  The 
Chair asked the applicant if she understood and agreed to the terms of conditions set forth in 
the revised special conditions.  The applicant expressed that she was not sure she was in 
agreement with the revised special conditions.  For clarification, Mr. Mullane repeated the 
motion and its revised conditions of approval.  Ms. Carlson noted that she understood the 
motion.  After further discussion on possible options for this item, Ms. Carlson noted her 
agreement with the conditions of approval and her willingness to work with staff on the 
specifics of the type of material that would be used in the driveway and garage area.  

 
            8.  DR 13-40 
                 Greg Schultz 
                 Lincoln 4 NE of 6th  

     Block 55; Lot 14 

Consideration of a Design Review (DR 13-40) 
application for exterior alterations to a property 
located in the Service Commercial (SC) Zoning 
District  

 
Mr. Wiener presented the staff report and summarized the request.  He noted staff’s 
concerns with the outdoor fire-pits, as these could be a code compliance issue.   

 
Chair Dallas asked the applicant to address the Commission. 
 
Claudio Ortiz, project designer, went over the project concept and its components.  He noted 
the applicant’s preference to have some variation in the brick pattern or design between the 
proposed area of work and the adjacent courtyard to the east.   
 

14



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

11 

Chair Dallas opened the public hearing.  
 
Speaker #1: Greg Schultz, property owner, spoke in support of the project and the need for 
the project.  
 
Seeing no other speakers, Chair Dallas closed the public hearing. 
 
The Commission was in support of the proposed building remodel.  The Commission had 
questions regarding whether the adjacent property owner that shares the courtyard was in 
support of the application and a concern whether the proposed balcony enlargement could 
be allowed given the non-conforming use on the second story.  The Commission supported 
the proposed water feature and could support two, rather than three, fire pits in the patio.  
Mr. Mullane noted that staff would research whether the balcony could be expanded and 
accessibility requirements that would be applied to the project.  
 
Commissioner PATERSON moved to continue the project with reference to the 
possible redesign of the balcony and the courtyard.  Motion seconded by 
Commissioner REIMERS and carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, GOODHUE,  
  REIMERS & CHAIR DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 

 
            9.  UP 14-04 
                 Gabriel Georis 
                 San Carlos 2 NE of 7th              

     Blk 77; Lot 16    

Consideration of a Use Permit Amendment (UP 14-
04) application to amend the hours of operation and 
allow for live music at an existing restaurant/bar 
located in the Central Commercial (CC) Zoning 
District (Continued to 4/17/14) 

 
This item was continued to the special meeting of April 17, 2014. 

 
XI. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. Status Report on Implementation Actions related to the Shoreline Management Plan and 
Forestry Management Plan 

 
Mr. Mullane provided a brief update on the status of the implementation of these plans and 
recent City Council direction on implementation.  Commissioner Reimers noted that the 
minutes distributed by staff as part of this item lacked a revision that was made by the 
Commission prior to approval.  Mr. Mullane confirmed that the version provided was not 
the final version and that he would ensure that the final minutes are distributed.   
 
Mr. Mullane also went over recent City Council actions and decisions and reminded the 
Commission of the upcoming Council consideration of the FY 2014-2015 budget. 

15



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 11, 2014 

12 

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned 
by Chair Dallas at 6:10 p.m.  
 
The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be a special meeting on Tuesday, March 
25, 2014. 

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 Daryl Betacur 

Acting Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Steve Dallas, Chairman 
 

16



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 25, 2014 

1 

CITY OF CARMEL-BY-THE-SEA 
PLANNING COMMISSION – MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING OF MARCH 25, 2014 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL FOR TOUR OF INSPECTION 
 
 PRESENT: Commission Members:  LePage, Paterson, and Reimers, Vice Chair   

Goodhue, and Chair Dallas 
 
 ABSENT: None 
  
 STAFF PRESENT: Rob Mullane, AICP, Community Planning & Building Director 

 Marc Wiener, Senior Planner 
 
II. ROLL CALL  
 

Chairman Dallas called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m.  
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Members of the audience joined the Commission in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
 IV.      ANNOUNCEMENTS/ EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

Chair Dallas announced that this would be moved to the end of the agenda to facilitate an 
earlier starts for the first discussion item and allow for more participation by Mr. Jeff 
Anadon with the California ABC. 

 
V.      DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
            1.   Wine Tasting Policy Update Discussion on the City’s Wine Tasting 

Policy and State Alcohol Beverage 
Control licensing requirements 

 
Commissioner Reimers recused herself from the discussion because she owns property with 
a pending tasting room application and left the dais. 
 
Marc Wiener, Senior Planner, presented the staff report including a summary of issues with 
the current Wine Tasting Policy: 1) space configuration and seating arrangements; 2) not 
presenting a bar-like appearance; 3) hours of operation; 4) source of grapes and location of 
winery; 5) type of licensing to be required; 6) number of wine shops allowed per block. 
 
Rob Mullane, Community Planning and Building Director, stated that initial intent of the 
workshop was to report on ABC licensing requirements.  However, the Commission may 
also provide input on the Policy, which staff will take into account as the Policy is reviewed 

17



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 25, 2014 

2 

in more detail through future workshops and hearings.  Mr. Mullane noted that Jeff Anadon, 
Licensing Agent with the California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, was in 
attendance to answer questions on the requirements.   

  
Jeff Anadon, spoke on behalf of the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control.  Mr. 
Anadon answered questions from Commissioners on licensing types and requirements. 

 
Chairman Dallas opened the item for public comment at 4:25 p.m. in regards to ABC 
licensing. 
 
Speaker #1: Jack Galante, Galante Vineyards, asked about Dup. 02 licensing and the 
number of Dup. 02 licenses a winery could have.  Mr. Anadon responded. 
 
Chairman Dallas closed this portion of the public comment at 4:29 p.m. and thanked 
Anadon for his time. 
 
Chairman Dallas reopened the item for public comment in regards to the Wine Tasting 
Policy. 
 
Speaker #1: Scott Scheid, Scheid Vineyards, stated the importance of requiring a tasting 
room to have a Type 02 license or a 42 license.  He also suggested that the policy specify 
the type of licensing they want the Use Permit holder to have and specify that the Use 
Permit applicant be the same person that secures the associated ABC license. 
 
Speaker #2: Carolyn Hardy, resident, summarized her support to tighten the current policy.  
She supports limiting hours by closing at 7 p.m., 1 oz maximum pours, no seating, limit on 
applications per year, and a city-wide cap. 
 
Speaker #3:  Anna Russell, De Tierra Vineyards, reported that the seating in the tasting 
room is very important to make customers feel comfortable and allow them to engage with 
staff. 
 
Speaker #4:  Jeffrey Blair, Blair Estate Tasting Room, stated that each winery in the state of 
California can have one duplicate Type 02 license.  Mr. Blair supports the retention of 
seating in the tasting room for the customers to have a learning experience.  He states a 7 
p.m. closing time is too early. 
 
Speaker #5: Jack Galante. Galante Vineyards, addressed the importance of providing seating 
and allowing a closing time past 7 p.m. to accommodate the customer especially out of state 
visitors. 
 
Speaker #6:  Celeste White, with Wine Walk and White Pages Communications, supports 
preserving a Monterey County focus for the policy.  She also supports a moratorium while 
the policy is revised.   
 

18



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 25, 2014 

3 

Speaker #7:  Barbara Livingston, Carmel Residents Association, expressed support for a 
moratorium and a cap on number of tasting rooms.  
 
Speaker #8: Rich Pepe, Vino Napoli, also noted his support for a moratorium.  He stated 
that limiting seating or hours will not help with the policy issues.  He also suggests 02 
license from a Monterey County Vineyard should only licensing, tasting rooms be required 
to have their own bathroom, and that a tasting room can only operate solely as a tasting 
room. 
 
Speaker #9: Brian Foucht, representing Hahn Winery, posed questions to the Commission 
on regarding the process, he also suggested that a checklist to be part of the application 
process, and asked about transfer of an existing Use Permit. 
 
Speaker #10: Monta Potter, Chamber of Commerce, spoke to the positive impact that 
existing tasting rooms in Carmel have had on other businesses in Carmel. 
 
Speaker #11: Jim Heisinger, attorney for applicant Jim Schultz with Windy Oak Winery, 
requested that any moratorium include an exemption for applications that are in process. 
 
Mr. Mullane provided a response to the questions from Mr. Foucht. 
 
Mr. Weiner stated Windy Oaks and Surf N’ Sand applications are deemed complete and 
possibly also Wyland Gallery’s application. 
 
Commissioner PATERSON moved to recommend to City Council an emergency 
moratorium on new wine tasting rooms with the exception of those deemed complete to 
be excluded from moratorium.  Motion seconded by Commissioner LEPAGE and 
carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES: COMMISSIONERS: LEPAGE, PATERSON, GOODHUE  
   & CHAIRMAN DALLAS  
NOES: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSENT: COMMISSIONERS: NONE 
ABSTAIN: COMMISSIONERS: REIMERS 
 
Commissioner Reimers returned to the dais at 5:16 p.m. 

 
 

2.   Carmel Resort Inn Re-Use Concept Review    
      Chadmar Corporation  
      Carpenter & Guadalupe Streets bet. 1st & 2nd 
      Block 17 (northern four-fifths), Lots 1-16 

Discussion on the proposed 
redevelopment of the northern four-
fifths of Block 17 to include the 
demolition of an existing 25-unit 
motel and construction of 16 new 
single-family residences on individual 
lots 

 

19



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 25, 2014 

4 

Commissioner LePage and Chair Dallas recused themselves as they own property within 
500 feet of the project site and accordingly left the dias at 5:17 p.m.   Vice Chair Goodhue 
presided over the item. 
 
Mr. Mullane stated that a conceptual review is an opportunity for the applicant to receive 
feedback from the Commission. 
 
Mr. Weiner presented a brief staff report noting the concept of the project and the materials 
submitted thus far by the applicant.   
 
Jonathan Sapp, agent for Chadmar Group, addressed the Commission and presented an 
overview of the project for the 16 proposed homes.  The commission had comments and 
questions on designs of homes and traffic from the new driveways accessing Carpenter 
Street.  Mr. Sapp stated that CalAm and the Water Management District staff have stated 
that there will be enough water for project.  He noted that traffic could be addressed through 
greater setbacks.   
 
Vice Chair Don Goodhue opened the item for public comments. 
 
Speaker #1: Barbara Livingston noted that this was a very important project that should be 
carefully designed and considered.  She supports mixed-size lots, use of wood primarily 
instead of stucco, and the need for shared common spaces. 
 
Speaker #2: Carolyn Hardy expressed her concern with adding eight new driveways to 
Carpenter and having the project look much like an ordinary subdivision. 
 
Speaker #3: Adam Jeselnick stated his support for redevelopment as residential 
neighborhood and differentiation in design.   
 
There being no other appearances, Vice Chair Goodhue closed the public meeting. 
 
Mr. Mullane clarified that the development will be considered as whole but will also require 
approval of individual design studies and other permits.  He noted that the CEQA review 
path was to be determined.  He explained that the City has processes for a specific plan or a 
community plan, and that a community plan may be needed to evaluate the development, 
although such a process would not be staff’s preference.  Mr. Mullane stated that the 
applicant can use this feedback from the Commission and come back for a another 
conceptual review with more concrete plans to determine if the Commission would like to 
move forward without requiring a community plan.  The property has previously been 
deemed as non-historic, but will need to have a re-evaluation since such determinations are 
good for five years. 
 
The Commission provided conceptual comments including the following: 1) that there 
should be varying lot sizes; 2) that there should be variation in home design and that only 5 
or 6 floor plans does not provide sufficient variety; 3) that traffic hazards resulting from 
driveways on Carpenter Street should be addressed by minimizing the number of driveways 

20



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 25, 2014 

5 

on Carpenter; and 4) build time.  One commissioner noted that compliance with the City’s 
Design Guidelines may not be adequate and the effort beyond that will be needed to make 
development Carmel-like. 
 
Vice Chair Goodhue reopened the item for public comments to allow Mr. Sapp to respond 
to the comments made by the Commission. 
 
Mr. Sapp states that his group is in a very preliminary stage of the project.  He wanted to 
present the project to the Commission so they are aware of the project and appreciates the 
feedback.    The homes will not look like an ordinary subdivision.  The intent is to submit all 
applications together to be reviewed at once but will have separate site plans and permits for 
each home.   
 

 Vice Chair Goodhue closed the public meeting. 
 
The Commission reiterated the importance of not having the homes look like an ordinary 
subdivision and their support for different lot sizes. 

 
Commissioner LePage and Chair Dallas returned to the dias at 6:08 p.m.    

 
IV. ANNOUNCEMENTS/EXTRAORDINARY BUSINESS 

 
Chair Dallas acknowledged Roxanne Ellis and thanked her for taking the meeting minutes.  
He also passed along his thanks to Daryl Betancur for stepping in as Commission Secretary 
for the last few months. 
 
Mr. Mullane stated that Mr. Betancur has accepted a new position closer to his home and 
will start the new position once the City’s election is complete.   

 
VI. APPEARANCES 

Chair Dallas opened the public comment at 6:09 p.m. Seeing no speakers, Chair Dallas 
closed the public comment at 6:09 p.m.  
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT: 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting was adjourned 
by Chair Dallas at 6:10 p.m.  
 
The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be Thursday, April 17, 2014. 

 
 
 

__________________________________ 
 Roxanne Ellis 

Acting Planning Commission Secretary  
 

21



Planning Commission Minutes 
March 25, 2014 

6 

 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Steve Dallas, Chairman 
 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



 

 

 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea 

Five Year Capital Improvement Plan 

July 1, 2014 – June 30, 2019 

 

 

 

March 18, 2014 

  



Page ii 
 

Table of Contents 
Capital Budget Transmittal and Summary .................................................................................................. 1 

Capital Budget Policies ................................................................................................................................. 4 

Summary of Projects by Department .......................................................................................................... 5 

Summary of Projects by Funding Source ..................................................................................................... 8  

Project Detail 

Administrative Services ........................................................................................................................... 11 

Voice over IP Telephone System ................................................................................................................... 11 

IT Strategic Plan, Phase 1 .............................................................................................................................. 12 

Library ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Park Branch Library Book Return .................................................................................................................. 14 

Public Safety:  Ambulance ....................................................................................................................... 15 

Replace Ambulance Vehicle .......................................................................................................................... 28 

Hydraulic Stretcher ........................................................................................................................................ 16 

Public Safety:  Fire ................................................................................................................................... 17 

Fire Engine 09/10 .......................................................................................................................................... 17 

Public Safety:  Police ............................................................................................................................... 18 

Parking Scooter ............................................................................................................................................. 18 

Patrol Vehicles ............................................................................................................................................... 19 

GPS & License Plate recognition .................................................................................................................... 20 

Kenwood Radio Purchase & Encryption ........................................................................................................ 21 

Parking Management Study .......................................................................................................................... 22 

Public Services: Public Works .................................................................................................................. 23 

Del Mar Master Plan Phase II Pathway ......................................................................................................... 23 

Scenic:  Ocean to 8th Utility Undergrounding ................................................................................................ 24 

Ocean Avenue to Torres Utility Undergrounding .......................................................................................... 25 

Street and Road Projects ............................................................................................................................... 26 

Gardener Trucks ............................................................................................................................................ 27 

Dump Truck ................................................................................................................................................... 28 

Water Truck ................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Guadalupe to 5th Storm Drain ...................................................................................................................... 30 

Bikeway Projects ........................................................................................................................................... 31 

Sidewalk Repair ............................................................................................................................................. 32 



Page iii 
 

Storm Drain Replacement ............................................................................................................................. 33 

Carpenter to Fourth Storm Drain .................................................................................................................. 34 

Ocean Avenue Utility Undergrounding ......................................................................................................... 35 

Public Services: Facilities ......................................................................................................................... 36 

Water Conservation Projects ........................................................................................................................ 36 

First Murphy Painting .................................................................................................................................... 37 

Piccadilly Park Restroom Improvements ....................................................................................................... 38 

Sunset Center Lighting Console ..................................................................................................................... 39 

Sunset Center Digital Sound Board ............................................................................................................... 40 

Sunset Center Ramp Construction ................................................................................................................ 41 

Sunset Center Awning ................................................................................................................................... 42 

PD/PW Roof/Patio Replacement ................................................................................................................... 43 

PD/PW Re-Painting ........................................................................................................................................ 44 

PW Garage Roll-Up Door Replacement ......................................................................................................... 55 

PD HVAC Replacement and Re-Roof ............................................................................................................. 45 

Sunset Center Wood Patio Stage Replacement ............................................................................................ 46 

Sunset Center Bach Offices Building Re-Roof ................................................................................................ 47 

Sunset Center Planter Re-construction ......................................................................................................... 48 

Sunset Center Roof Repairs ........................................................................................................................... 49 

Sunset Center Re-painting ............................................................................................................................. 50 

Harrison Memorial Library Re-painting Project ............................................................................................ 51 

Card Key Security System .............................................................................................................................. 52 

Forest Theater Renovation ............................................................................................................................ 53 

City Hall Renovations ..................................................................................................................................... 54 

Scout House Renovations .............................................................................................................................. 55 

Sunset Center Door Replacement ................................................................................................................. 56 

Park Branch Library Carpeting ....................................................................................................................... 57 

Park Branch Library Painting - Interior .......................................................................................................... 58 

Park Branch Basement Restoration ............................................................................................................... 59 

Public Services: Forest, Parks and Beach ................................................................................................ 60 

Scenic Pathway Landscape Renovation ......................................................................................................... 60 

Forest Hill Playground Improvements ........................................................................................................... 61 

Martha’s Way Stair Repair ............................................................................................................................ 62 

Del Mar Plan Sidewalk Replacement ............................................................................................................. 63 



Page iv 
 

 

Lower Ocean Landscape Improvements ....................................................................................................... 64 

Upper Ocean Landscape Improvements ....................................................................................................... 65 

MTNP Vegetation Management.................................................................................................................... 66 

MTNP Invasive Tree Management ................................................................................................................ 67 

MTNP Rio Road Entrance Reconfiguration .................................................................................................... 68 

Beach Rake .................................................................................................................................................... 69 

Digital Tree Database .................................................................................................................................... 70 

Urban Forest Rehabilitation .......................................................................................................................... 71 

F550/chipper ................................................................................................................................................. 72 

Beach stair maintenance ............................................................................................................................... 73 

Mission Trail Park water tank ........................................................................................................................ 74 

Beach fire baskets ......................................................................................................................................... 75 

Rio Park Improvements ................................................................................................................................. 76 

Scenic Rd. Restrooms .................................................................................................................................... 77 

Replace Forester Truck .................................................................................................................................. 78 

Waterfront Area Signs ................................................................................................................................... 79 

Dunes Habitat Restoration ............................................................................................................................ 80 

City Hall Cistern ............................................................................................................................................. 81 

Shoreline Assessment and Implementation .................................................................................................. 82 

Mission Trail Entrance ................................................................................................................................... 83 

Trash Can Refurbishment and Replacement ................................................................................................. 84 

 

 

  



Page 1 
 

Honorable Mayor and Council members: 

I am pleased to present the recommended Fiscal Year 2014-15 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for the 
City of Carmel-by-the-Sea for the period of July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019.  The CIP is a budgeting 
and strategic planning tool intended to address the City’s capital needs for a rolling five year period. This 
five-year program displays a continued shift in the types of projects funded, from building new facilities 
to rehabilitation, deferred maintenance, and replacement of existing capital items.  The underlying 
strategy of the CIP is to plan for necessary land acquisition, construction and maintenance of public 
facilities necessary for the safe and efficient provision of public services in accordance with City policies 
and objectives adopted in the City’s General Plan. 

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea's 5-Year Capital Improvement Program is a multi-year planning 
instrument for the construction of new and expansion, rehabilitation, or replacement of existing City 
owned assets. It provides a planned systematic approach to utilizing the City’s financial resources in the 
most responsive and efficient manner to meet its service and facility needs. The CIP includes estimates 
of all capital needs, and as such, provides the basis for setting priorities, reviewing schedules, developing 
funding policy for proposed improvements, monitoring and evaluating the progress of capital projects, 
and informing the public of projected capital improvements and unfunded needs.  The CIP does not 
appropriate funds; rather, it serves as a budgeting tool, proposing Capital Budget appropriations to be 
recommended for adoption within the City’s fiscal year 2014-2015 Operating Plan and Budget.   

A Capital Improvement Plan is a guide toward the efficient and effective provision of public 
infrastructure and facilities. Programming capital facilities and improvements over time can promote 
better use of the City’s limited financial resources, reduce costs and assist in the coordination of public 
and private development. In addition, the planning process is valuable as a means of coordinating and 
taking advantage of joint planning and development of facilities and infrastructure where possible. 
Careful management of these assets keeps the City poised for flexible and responsive strategic planning 
that allows the City to proactively prepare the groundwork for capital projects so when funding 
opportunities arise, a plan is ready to be implemented. By looking beyond year-to-year budgeting and 
projecting what, where, when and how capital investments should be made, capital planning enables 
public organizations to maintain an effective level of service for the present and future population.  
While the program serves as the long range plan, it is reviewed and revised annually in conjunction with 
the budget. Priorities may be changed due to funding opportunities or circumstances that cause a more 
rapid deterioration of an asset. 

The CIP identifies 72 projects for the five-year period.  The CIP identifies new facility construction, 
facility refurbishment, and infrastructure projects, and their respective funding sources, if any, to create 
a sound planning document. The program includes the design, construction, and major rehabilitation of 
capital improvements that have a long-term life span, and cost more than $10,000. With these projects, 
the City Council would be investing approximately $16.4 million over the next five years. This major 
investment in the City’s infrastructure represents a significant commitment to our community’s future 
and is made possible in great part from the community’s support of Measure D.  Measure D revenue is 
planned to be a source of funding for 27 projects totaling nearly $6.7 million.   



Page 2 
 

The CIP is primarily a planning document to assist in the City’s long-term planning. As such, is the 
projects and their scopes are subject to change from year to year as the needs of the community 
become more defined and projects move closer to final implementation. The adoption of the CIP is 
neither a commitment to a particular project nor a limitation to a particular cost. As a basic tool for 
scheduling anticipated capital projects, it is also a key element in planning and controlling future capital 
financing. For this reason, the CIP includes some “unfunded” projects in which needs have been 
identified, but specific solutions and funding have not been determined. When adopted, the CIP 
provides the framework for the City’s management team and the City Council with respect to 
investment planning, project planning and managing any debt.  

The 5-Year Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 through 2018-2019 includes various 
projects for the benefit of the citizens of Carmel-by-the-Sea. Each of the projects meets some or all of 
the following criteria:  

• Elimination of potentially hazardous or unsafe conditions and potential liabilities  
• Replacement of high maintenance and inefficient/ineffective infrastructure  
• Improvement to and/or creation of new services to the Public  
• Outside agency regulatory requirements and mandates  
• Stimulation of the local economy/eliminate blighted conditions  
• Compliance with the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea General Plan  
• Preservation of existing assets  

Each project is prioritized in accordance with the following urgency label categories.   

Urgency 1: The project is urgent and/or mandated, and must be completed quickly. The City could face 
severe consequences if the project is delayed, possibly impacting the health, safety, or welfare of the 
community, or having a significant impact on the financial well being of the City.  The project must be 
initiated or financial/opportunity losses will result. 

Urgency 2: The project is very important and addressing it is necessary. The project impacts safety, law 
enforcement, health, welfare, economic base, and/or quality of life in the community. 

Urgency 3: The project is important and would enhance the quality of life and would provide a benefit to 
the community.  

Urgency 4: The timing of the project is less important but completion of the project would improve the 
community providing cultural, recreational, and/or aesthetic effects. 

Urgency 5: The project would be an improvement to the community, but need not be completed within 
a five-year CIP. 

The CIP includes a comprehensive listing of all projects contained in the Five-Year CIP and also projects 
beyond the Five-Year Period. Detailed project sheets are contained in the plan for all projects included in 
the CIP. Cost estimates have been developed for each project based on preliminary project descriptions, 
and include all estimated costs for land acquisition, permits and inspections, project management and 



Page 3 
 

project engineering, consultant design, construction, utilities, information technology infrastructure and 
other associated project fees. Estimates are in today’s dollars, and the future year projections have been 
adjusted for inflation. 

The operating budget impact of proposed capital projects, including personnel, operating expenditures, 
capital outlay, and debt service, as applicable, are identified on the project detail sheets and considered 
in preparing the annual operating budget and Five-Year Financial Forecast. 

Thirteen projects were or will be completed in Fiscal Year 2013-2014.  These include: 
• Citywide street and road resurfacing and sidewalk repair; 
• Appraisal and inventorying of City artwork for insurance purposes (pending) 
• Diesel exhaust filtering systems for the fire department 
• Self contained breathing apparatus for fire ambulance personnel 
• Cardiac monitor and defibrillator for the ambulance 
• Dry weather storm water diversion 
• Improvement of the storm drain at Santa Fe and Fourth 
• Replacement of the railing in the Sunset Center parking lot (pending) 
• Renovation of the City’s tennis court (pending) 
• Installation of an irrigation meter for the Fourth Avenue landscaping (pending) 
• Purchase of a replacement paint/sign truck 
• Purchase of a replacement police patrol vehicle 
• Final payment of a lease purchase for the ambulance, sweeper, chipper truck, parking vehicle, police 

utility vehicle, and loader 
 
Projects new to this CIP include: 

• IT Strategic Plan – Phase 1 
• Del Mar pathway 
• Utility undergrounding  
• Carpenter to Fourth storm drain repair 
• First Murphy house painting 
• Piccadilly Park restroom improvements 
• Sunset Center lighting console 
• Sunset Center digital sound board 
• Sunset Center ramp construction 
• Sunset Center awning 
• Scenic Pathway renovation 

 

• Forest Hill Park playground improvements 
• Martha’s Way stair repair 
• Del Mar sidewalk replacement 
• Ocean Ave. landscape improvements 
• Mission Trail Nature Preserve vegetation 

management 
• Mission Trail Nature Preserve Rio Rd entrance 

reconfiguration 
• Beach rake 
• Digital tree database 
• Urban forest rehabilitation 

 
The schedule for Capital Improvement Projects is based on available funding, public benefit, and funding 
restrictions. This Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is submitted to the City Council to utilize in 
reviewing and prioritizing capital projects. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Jason Stilwell 
City Administrator  



Page 4 
 

Capital Budget Policies  
(Policy No. 94-01 revised and adopted by the City Council on February 5, 2013)  

The City develops an annual five-year plan for capital improvements; it includes project design, development, 
implementation, and operating and maintenance costs.  Each project in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) shows 
the estimated capital and on-going maintenance costs, known and potential funding sources and a 
design/development schedule.  As used in the CIP, projects include land acquisition, buildings and facilities 
construction; these projects do not have a cost threshold.  A capital outlay (fixed asset) purchase is any single item 
or piece of equipment that costs more than $10,000 and has an expected useful life exceeding one year.  The 
development of the Capital Improvement Plan is coordinated with the development of the operating budget.  The 
CIP is a planning document; the City Council appropriates funding for capital projects in the annual operating 
budget.  Costs for professional services needed to implement the CIP are to be included in the appropriate year’s 
operating budget.   

Annual operating budgets should provide adequate funds for maintenance of the City’s buildings and maintenance 
and replacement of the City’s capital equipment.  The City will make all capital improvements in accordance with 
an adopted and funded capital improvement program.  Prior to ratification of the capital budget for the 
forthcoming year by the City Council, the Planning Commission shall review the capital improvement plan and shall 
advise the City Council as to its recommendations regarding the proposed capital projects in accordance with the 
Government Code.  

Capital expenditures shall be effectively planned and controlled.   

Guidelines: 

1. The level of capital improvement expenditures, excluding road maintenance program expenditures 
and lease payments, is established at three and one-half percent (3.5%) of total revenues. 

2. Funding for the road maintenance program should improve the pavement condition index.   
3. The City shall maintain a Five-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP), which shall be updated at 

least annually as part of the budget review process. 
4. The City shall annually establish a phasing calendar for capital improvement expenditures. 
5. At least ten percent (10%) of the unrestricted funds designated for capital project expenditures shall 

be set aside for unanticipated expenditures. 
6. The City shall conduct periodic reviews of property and facilities to determine the appropriate use 

and disposition of said property and facilities. 
7. The City shall consider the ongoing impact of operations and maintenance expenses before 

undertaking any capital improvement expenditure.   
8. The City shall maintain a capital reserve policy as described in the Reserve Policy.   
9. Public participation in the Capital Improvement Program is a priority concern for the City.   
10. All projects included in the Capital Improvement Plan shall be consistent with the City’s General Plan. 
11. Capital projects that are not encumbered or completed during the fiscal year are required to be 

rebudgeted to the next fiscal year and subsequently approved by the City Council. All rebudgeted 
capital projects should be so noted in the proposed budget. 

 



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

PROJECTS BY DEPARTMENT

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

         Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Department Project# Urgency

Administrative Services

ASD-1213-03 54,00054,000Voice over IP Telephone System 2

ASD-1415-01 326,500307,000 6,500 6,500 6,500IT Strategic Plan - Phase 1 1

380,500307,000 60,500 6,500 6,500Administrative Services Total

Library

LIB-1314-01 7,5007,500Park Branch Library Book Return 3

7,5007,500Library Total

Safety: Ambulance

AMB-1213-01 150,000150,000Replace Ambulance Vehicle 5

AMB-1314-01 17,14217,142Hydraulic Stretcher 2

167,14217,142 150,000Safety: Ambulance Total

Safety: Fire

FIRE-1112-03 141,10470,552 70,552Fire Engine Lease Purchase (09/10) 1

141,10470,552 70,552Safety: Fire Total

Safety: Police

POL-1314-01 40,18440,184Parking Scooter 2

POL-1314-02 433,00089,000 56,000 93,000 130,000 65,000Patrol Vehicles 2

POL-1314-03 104,176104,176GPS & License Plate Recognition 4

POL-1314-05 72,00072,000Kenwood Radio Purchase & Encryption 1

POL-1415-04 700,000474,000 226,000Parking Management Study 2

1,349,360675,184 386,176 93,000 130,000 65,000Safety: Police Total

Services:  Public Works

CPB-1213-02 60,00060,000Del Mar Master Plan - Phase II Pathway 2

PW 1415-05 600,000600,000Scenic: Ocean to 8th Ave. Utility Undergrounding 4

PW 1415-06 1,100,0001,100,000Ocean Avenue to Torres Utility Undergrounding 4

PW-1112-01 4,884,000976,800 976,800 976,800 976,800 976,800Street and Road Projects 1

PW-1213-04 85,00040,000 45,000Gardener Trucks 3

PW-1213-05 90,00090,000Dump Truck 3

PW-1213-06 80,00080,000Water Truck 2

PW-1213-07 350,000350,000Guadalupe to 5th Storm Drain 1

PW-1314-01 610,00050,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000Bikeway Projects 3

PW-1415-01 375,00075,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000Sidewalk Repair 1

PW-1415-02 165,00045,000 25,000 35,000 30,000 30,000Storm Drain Replacement 2

PW-1415-03 350,000350,000Carpenter to 4th Storm Drain 2

8,749,0001,206,800 1,696,800 1,351,800 1,571,800 2,921,800Services:  Public Works Total

Page 5



         Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Department Project# Urgency

Services: Facilities

CPB-1314-01 30,00010,000 10,000 10,000Water Conservation Projects 5

FAC- 1415-01 10,00010,000First Murphy Painting 3

FAC 1415-02 40,00010,000 30,000Picadilly Park Restroom Improvements 2

FAC 1415-03 19,50019,500Sunset Center Lighting Console 1

FAC 1415-04 62,50062,500Sunset Center Digital Sound Board 2

FAC 1415-05 35,00010,000 25,000Sunset Center Ramp Construction 2

FAC 1415-06 45,00010,000 35,000Sunset Center Awning 4

FAC-1213-01 1,075,00075,000 500,000 500,000PD/PW Roof/Patio Replacement 1

FAC-1213-02 27,00027,000PD/PW Re-Painting 5

FAC-1213-04 400,00050,000 350,000PD HVAC Replacement and Re-Roof 1

FAC-1213-08 10,00010,000Sunset Center Wood Patio Stage Replacement 3

FAC-1213-09 25,00025,000Sunset Center Bach Offices Building Re-Roof 4

FAC-1213-10 27,00027,000Sunset Center Planter Re-construction 2

FAC-1213-11 75,35275,352Sunset Center Roof Repairs 1

FAC-1213-14 25,00025,000Sunset Center Re-painting 3

FAC-1213-16 28,00028,000Harrison Memorial Library Re-painting Project 3

FAC-1213-20 25,00025,000Card Key Security System 5

FAC-1213-21 1,130,000180,000 950,000Forest Theater Renovation 1

FAC-1314-01 30,00030,000City Hall Renovations 3

FAC-1314-02 400,00050,000 350,000Scout House Renovations 3

FAC-1314-04 35,00035,000Sunset Center Door Replacement 3

LIB-1112-01 43,00043,000Park Branch Library carpeting 4

LIB-1213-03 22,00022,000Park Branch Library Painting - Interior 3

LIB-1314-02 75,00075,000Park Branch Basement Restoration 1

3,694,352562,352 680,000 1,950,000 502,000Services: Facilities Total

Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

FPB 1415-01 150,000150,000Scenic Pathway and Landscape Renovation 2

FPB 1415-02 38,00038,000Forest Hill Park playground improvements 2

FPB 1415-03 30,00030,000Martha's Way stair repair 1

FPB 1415-04 120,000120,000Del Mar Plan sidewalk replacement 1

FPB 1415-05 35,00035,000Lower Ocean landscape improvements 4

FPB 1415-06 100,000100,000Upper Ocean Ave. landscape improvement 3

FPB 1415-07 50,00010,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000MTNP Vegetation Management (goats) 2

FPB 1415-08 75,00015,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000MTNP Invasive Tree Management 2

FPB 1415-09 100,000100,000MTNP Rio Rd. Entrance Reconfiguration 2

FPB 1415-10 90,00090,000Beach Rake 4

FPB 1415-11 19,5006,500 6,500 6,500Digital Tree Database 2

FPB 1415-12 25,0005,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000Urban Forest Rehabilitation 2

FPB-1112-04 68,00068,000F550/chipper 3

FPB-1213-01 120,00024,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000Beach Stair Maintenance 1

FPB-1213-02 270,000270,000Mission Trail Park Water Tank 3

FPB-1213-04 37,5007,500 7,500 5,000 5,000 12,500Beach Fire Baskets 3

FPB-1213-05 140,00040,000 50,000 50,000Rio Park Improvements 4

FPB-1213-06 150,000150,000Scenic Rd. Restrooms 3

FPB-1213-07 35,00035,000Replace Forester Truck 3

FPB-1213-08 42,00032,000 10,000Waterfront Area Signs 3

FPB-1314-02 86,00016,000 16,000 16,000 19,000 19,000Dunes Habitat Restoration 3

FPB-1314-03 25,00025,000City Hall Cistern 3

FPB-1314-04 50,00015,000 15,000 10,000 10,000Shoreline Assessment and Implementation 2

FPB-1314-05 40,00040,000Mission Trail Entrance 2

FPB-1314-06 15,00015,000Trash Can Refurbishment and Replacement 4

1,911,000589,000 464,000 516,500 256,000 85,500Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach Total

Page 6



         Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Department Project# Urgency

GRAND TOTAL 16,399,9583,435,530 3,358,028 3,917,800 2,616,300 3,072,300

Page 7



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

PROJECTS BY FUNDING SOURCE

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

TotalSource Project #     Urgency '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

Donor Opportunity

FAC-1213-08 10,00010,000Sunset Center Wood Patio Stage Replacement 3

FAC-1213-21 475,000475,000Forest Theater Renovation 1

FAC-1314-02 175,000175,000Scout House Renovations 3

FPB-1213-04 7,5007,500Beach Fire Baskets 3

LIB-1314-01 7,5007,500Park Branch Library Book Return 3

675,00025,000 650,000Donor Opportunity Total

GF:  Capital Improvements

AMB-1213-01 150,000150,000Replace Ambulance Vehicle 5

AMB-1314-01 17,14217,142Hydraulic Stretcher 2

ASD-1213-03 54,00054,000Voice over IP Telephone System 2

ASD-1415-01 286,500267,000 6,500 6,500 6,500IT Strategic Plan - Phase 1 1

FAC- 1415-01 10,00010,000First Murphy Painting 3

FAC 1415-03 19,50019,500Sunset Center Lighting Console 1

FAC 1415-04 62,50062,500Sunset Center Digital Sound Board 2

FAC-1213-01 500,000500,000PD/PW Roof/Patio Replacement 1

FAC-1213-02 27,00027,000PD/PW Re-Painting 5

FAC-1213-04 50,00050,000PD HVAC Replacement and Re-Roof 1

FAC-1213-09 25,00025,000Sunset Center Bach Offices Building Re-Roof 4

FAC-1213-10 27,00027,000Sunset Center Planter Re-construction 2

FAC-1213-14 25,00025,000Sunset Center Re-painting 3

FAC-1213-16 28,00028,000Harrison Memorial Library Re-painting Project 3

FAC-1213-20 25,00025,000Card Key Security System 5

FAC-1314-04 35,00035,000Sunset Center Door Replacement 3

FIRE-1112-03 141,10470,552 70,552Fire Engine Lease Purchase (09/10) 1

FPB 1415-01 150,000150,000Scenic Pathway and Landscape Renovation 2

FPB 1415-02 38,00038,000Forest Hill Park playground improvements 2

FPB 1415-03 30,00030,000Martha's Way stair repair 1

FPB 1415-05 35,00035,000Lower Ocean landscape improvements 4

FPB 1415-07 20,00010,000 10,000MTNP Vegetation Management (goats) 2

FPB 1415-08 30,00015,000 15,000MTNP Invasive Tree Management 2

FPB 1415-10 90,00090,000Beach Rake 4

FPB 1415-11 6,5006,500Digital Tree Database 2

FPB 1415-12 10,0005,000 5,000Urban Forest Rehabilitation 2

FPB-1112-04 68,00068,000F550/chipper 3

FPB-1213-01 48,00024,000 24,000Beach Stair Maintenance 1

FPB-1213-02 270,000270,000Mission Trail Park Water Tank 3

FPB-1213-04 17,5005,000 12,500Beach Fire Baskets 3

FPB-1213-05 40,00040,000Rio Park Improvements 4

FPB-1213-07 30,00030,000Replace Forester Truck 3

LIB-1213-03 18,00018,000Park Branch Library Painting - Interior 3

POL-1314-01 40,18440,184Parking Scooter 2

POL-1314-02 433,00089,000 56,000 93,000 130,000 65,000Patrol Vehicles 2

Page 8



TotalSource Project #     Urgency '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

POL-1314-03 104,176104,176GPS & License Plate Recognition 4

POL-1415-04 467,000241,000 226,000Parking Management Study 2

PW 1415-06 260,000260,000Ocean Avenue to Torres Utility Undergrounding 4

PW-1213-04 85,00040,000 45,000Gardener Trucks 3

PW-1213-05 90,00090,000Dump Truck 3

PW-1213-06 80,00080,000Water Truck 2

PW-1213-07 350,000350,000Guadalupe to 5th Storm Drain 1

PW-1415-02 65,00035,000 30,000Storm Drain Replacement 2

PW-1415-03 350,000350,000Carpenter to 4th Storm Drain 2

PW-1415-04 100,000100,000Ocean Ave Utility Undergrounding 3

4,808,106919,878 1,315,228 1,330,000 821,500 421,500GF:  Capital Improvements Total

Grants

CPB-1213-02 60,00060,000Del Mar Master Plan - Phase II Pathway 2

CPB-1314-01 20,00010,000 10,000Water Conservation Projects 5

FAC-1213-21 180,000180,000Forest Theater Renovation 1

FAC-1314-02 175,000175,000Scout House Renovations 3

FPB 1415-04 60,00060,000Del Mar Plan sidewalk replacement 1

FPB-1213-06 150,000150,000Scenic Rd. Restrooms 3

FPB-1314-02 67,00016,000 16,000 16,000 19,000Dunes Habitat Restoration 3

FPB-1314-03 25,00025,000City Hall Cistern 3

FPB-1314-04 50,00015,000 15,000 10,000 10,000Shoreline Assessment and Implementation 2

FPB-1314-06 7,5007,500Trash Can Refurbishment and Replacement 4

PW-1314-01 560,000140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000Bikeway Projects 3

1,354,500523,500 181,000 341,000 169,000 140,000Grants Total

Intergovernmental

PW-1415-04 850,000850,000Ocean Ave Utility Undergrounding 3

850,000850,000Intergovernmental Total

Measure D

ASD-1415-01 40,00040,000IT Strategic Plan - Phase 1 1

FAC 1415-06 45,00010,000 35,000Sunset Center Awning 4

FAC-1213-01 575,00075,000 500,000PD/PW Roof/Patio Replacement 1

FAC-1213-04 350,000350,000PD HVAC Replacement and Re-Roof 1

FAC-1213-21 475,000475,000Forest Theater Renovation 1

FAC-1314-01 30,00030,000City Hall Renovations 3

FAC-1314-02 50,00050,000Scout House Renovations 3

FPB 1415-06 100,000100,000Upper Ocean Ave. landscape improvement 3

FPB 1415-07 10,00010,000MTNP Vegetation Management (goats) 2

FPB 1415-08 15,00015,000MTNP Invasive Tree Management 2

FPB 1415-09 100,000100,000MTNP Rio Rd. Entrance Reconfiguration 2

FPB 1415-12 5,0005,000Urban Forest Rehabilitation 2

FPB-1213-01 24,00024,000Beach Stair Maintenance 1

FPB-1213-04 5,0005,000Beach Fire Baskets 3

FPB-1213-05 100,00050,000 50,000Rio Park Improvements 4

FPB-1213-08 32,00032,000Waterfront Area Signs 3

FPB-1314-05 40,00040,000Mission Trail Entrance 2

LIB-1112-01 43,00043,000Park Branch Library carpeting 4

LIB-1314-02 75,00075,000Park Branch Basement Restoration 1

POL-1314-05 72,00072,000Kenwood Radio Purchase & Encryption 1

Page 9



TotalSource Project #     Urgency '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

POL-1415-04 233,000233,000Parking Management Study 2

PW 1415-05 600,000600,000Scenic: Ocean to 8th Ave. Utility Undergrounding 4

PW-1112-01 3,134,000626,800 626,800 626,800 626,800 626,800Street and Road Projects 1

PW-1314-01 50,00050,000Bikeway Projects 3

PW-1415-01 375,00075,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000Sidewalk Repair 1

PW-1415-02 30,00030,000Storm Drain Replacement 2

PW-1415-04 100,000100,000Ocean Ave Utility Undergrounding 3

6,708,0001,348,800 1,344,800 1,336,800 1,375,800 1,301,800Measure D Total

Road Impact Fund

PW-1112-01 1,000,000200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000Street and Road Projects 1

1,000,000200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000Road Impact Fund Total

SCC Retainage

FAC-1213-11 75,35275,352Sunset Center Roof Repairs 1

75,35275,352SCC Retainage Total

Traffic Safety

PW-1112-01 750,000150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000Street and Road Projects 1

750,000150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000Traffic Safety Total

Unfunded

FAC 1415-02 50,00010,000 40,000Picadilly Park Restroom Improvements 2

FAC 1415-05 35,00010,000 25,000Sunset Center Ramp Construction 2

FPB 1415-04 60,00060,000Del Mar Plan sidewalk replacement 1

FPB 1415-07 20,00010,000 10,000MTNP Vegetation Management (goats) 2

FPB 1415-08 30,00015,000 15,000MTNP Invasive Tree Management 2

FPB 1415-11 13,0006,500 6,500Digital Tree Database 2

FPB 1415-12 10,0005,000 5,000Urban Forest Rehabilitation 2

FPB-1213-01 48,00024,000 24,000Beach Stair Maintenance 1

FPB-1213-04 7,5007,500Beach Fire Baskets 3

FPB-1213-08 10,00010,000Waterfront Area Signs 3

FPB-1314-06 22,5007,500 15,000Trash Can Refurbishment and Replacement 4

PW 1415-06 840,000840,000Ocean Avenue to Torres Utility Undergrounding 4

PW-1415-02 70,00045,000 25,000Storm Drain Replacement 2

1,216,000193,000 183,000 840,000Unfunded Total

17,436,9583,435,530 3,374,028 4,007,800 2,716,300 3,903,300GRAND TOTAL

Page 10



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Upgrade present telephone system to incorporate more recent technology to meet the needs of staff and the calling public.  Currently researching 

available solutions.  Feature set might include conference calling, web conferencing, voicemail transcription, call forwarding, fax service via 

internet, soft phone support (ability to use computer as phone), unified in-box (voice, e-mail, fax), presence management (identifies if callee is 

available and the best means of contacting them (phone, e-mail, IM) and a multitude of reporting options.  

System Requirements: Server, switches for power to the phone set, wiring, phone sets, software.

Project # ASD-1213-03

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Currently, the City's telephone system operates on a legacy centrex system, with switching provided by the "telephone company," the way 

telephone service has been provided for many years.  By moving to a VOIP or other computer based solution, the City would be able to "unify" 

its communications (move all communications to computer-based communication)  and develop more flexibility in communicating with each 

other and the public. 

The City would eventually save money on telephone service as we would need only a few outside lines rather than the 65 lines we have now.  

The placement of the funds in 2015 budget year is to allow the present Calnet2 contract to expire thus relieving the burden of AT&T penalties 

that are in the contract.

 Budget Impact/Other

No change.

Useful Life 8 years

Project Name Voice over IP Telephone System

Category Equipment: Computers

Type Equipment

Contact Admin Srvs Director

Department Administrative Services

Total Project Cost: $54,000

Account # 13-88353

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

54,00054,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

54,000 54,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

54,00054,000GF:  Capital Improvements

54,000 54,000Total

Page 11



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This Capital Project is the Phase I implementation of the 2013-2017 Information Technology Strategic Plan.  The encompasses four key projects 

that lead to the fulfillment of the Plan's short and long range objectives as detailed in the Strategic Plan.

The four projects undertaken in Phase I are website updates (Online City Hall initiative), ERP upgrades, including HR/PR system, Financial 

System Upgrade, Legislative Management Suite, and Permit Tracking software (ERP initiative), infrastructure upgrades of software and hardware 

(Security Plan initiative), and Public Safety upgrades related to hardware and software for communications and the Emergency Operations Center 

(EOC) (Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery initiative).  The emphasis in implementing the Plan will be on cloud-based solutions.

Project # ASD-1415-01

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

Implementing Phase I of the City Council approved 2013-2017 Information Technology Strategic Plan and the 2014 Key Initiative to implement 

Phase I of the Information Technology Strategic Plan.

Individually, the projects are justified by the following:

1. Financial System Upgrade

The existing accounting software is no longer being upgraded.  The City continues to receive some support but the underlying software code is 

outdated.  While it completes tasks that have been historically needed by the City (pays bills, makes deposits, keeps a basic set of books from 

which financial statements can be prepared, etc.), its structure is antiquated and does not provide City staff the ability to "slice and dice" our 

database to facilitate, collect and analyze information to make informed decisions more efficiently.

A new system would have, among other things (1) the ability to be accessed remotely, (2)  the ability to produce many more reports, along with 

the ability to design new reports, as needed, (3) the ability to keep track of City projects more effectively, (4) the ability to internally produce 

GASB 34 compliant financial statements, (5) the ability to integrate a document management system, (6) the ability to integrate with a complete 

Human Resources module with "self-serve" web portal access to City staff, (7) have a purchase order system that requires multi-level approval so 

that  budget line items are not exceeded, among many other benefits.

A new financial software system would address organizational performance through a structure that is responsive to meeting internal operational 

needs and objectives and the delivery of high-quality customer service by implementing (1) a rigid purchase order system that is budget-

constrained and requires multiple levels of approval authority, (2) a system that can be accessed remotely by staff to assist customers/citizens 

with issues, and (3) a reporting system that would best suit the needs of City leaders  and staff by providing information that is more complete 

and more timely than is currently possible.

2. Human Resources/Payroll System

Currently one City employee spends between 10-12 hours per month in processing payroll and performing basic human resource, benefits 

reporting and administration.  The amount of customer service given to employees is minimal.  Additionally, department directors are 

responsible for supplying spreadsheet based timecards that need to be manually entered into the current payroll system, introducing the 

possibility of errors.  The current system has minimal reporting capabilities.  The new system will have the ability to perform HR analytics and 

assist departments with workforce management and planning.

3. Website Update

Provide better service to the world and the citizens of Carmel-by-the-Sea.  The present website does not have the latest technology of social 

networking.  This addition would make the website more user friendly and would improve emergency preparedness.  The website would create 

an environment that will allow for simpler and cost effective updates.

4. Legislative Management Suite

The implementation of a legislative management suite to bring automation, workflow management and document management to Council agenda 

arena.  Assists the City to become more streamlined and more transparent.

The City's 2013 adopted objectives of Organizational Effectiveness and Fiscal Stability are both addressed via streamlining processes and 

Useful Life 8 years

Project Name IT Strategic Plan - Phase 1

Category Equipment: Computers

Type Equipment

Contact Admin Srvs Director

Department Administrative Services

Total Project Cost: $326,500

Account #

Page 12



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

providing more transparent processes.  This type of system assists in streamlining processes by (1) providing remote access, (2) providing the 

ability to make online annotations and approvals of legislative documents, (3) providing automatic tagging and indexing of legislative 

documents, (4) reducing paper consumption, (5) and providing the ability for continuous workflow between Council sessions.

This type of system would also help with making the City's processes more transparent to the public by providing more automated public records 

access and an easy to use, self serve, online legislative portal for the public.

5. Infrastructure  Hardware and Software

In general, this equipment is required in order to implement the move from terrestrial-based computing to cloud-based computing.  For efficient 

and effective implementation of cloud-based services, switches will need to have throughput at the 1Gb/sec rate, an upgrade from the current 50-

100 Mb/sec.  Moving to this throughput will also be sufficient to support the move from existing telephone system to Voice over IP (VOIP) 

technology in the future should it be implemented in the future.

Phase I also includes needed updates to the Police Department technology in support of the EOC and key police systems:

6. Net Motion - Police Department

Implementation will allow officers to better access information in our data systems while in the field.  Having officers able to constantly access 

information in the field will produce a more efficient work force.

7. PSAP - Police Department

 The system will allow a 911 dispatcher to be on scene in the EOC improving communication and service during emergency situations as well as 

providing flexibility to move the EOC per the EOP.

8. JEI Recorder - Police Department

This is an essential part of the dispatch center and a working recorder is needed at times to obtain vital information from callers as well as when 

requested by the courts during criminal trials

Phase 1 may also include new departmental software that supports the ERP initiative: 

9. Permit Tracking Software - Community Planning & Building

Planning permits are currently tracked through an outdated Microsoft Access program.  Building permits are tracked through an Excel 

spreadsheet but all permit inspections and actual permits are prepared on a typewriter.  Having an updated software system will improve 

customer service and enable staff to be more efficient, eliminate the need for antiquated equipment, and improve tracking and reporting.

10.  Digital Tree Database

A digital tree inventory will allow staff to easily track tree removals, tree plantings, individual tree work histories by staff and contractors, and 

program future maintenance efforts. In the past Carmel’s lack of street address has been an obstacle for utilizing tree management software 

products. With the advent of digital mapping and more precise GPS products, a specific street address is no longer required. The City’s current 

grid pruning contractor has a free software product available to Carmel, but mapping the trees in the field is an expense.

 Budget Impact/Other

Phase I will draw mainly from General Fund revenues ($260,500 in FY14-15) with some Measure D revenue ($40,000 in FY14-15)

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

326,500307,000 6,500 6,500 6,500Computer Software/Hardware

307,000 6,500 6,500 6,500 326,500Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

286,500267,000 6,500 6,500 6,500GF:  Capital Improvements
40,00040,000Measure D

307,000 6,500 6,500 6,500 326,500Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

118,40029,600 29,600 29,600 29,600Subscription Fees

29,600 29,600 29,600 29,600 118,400Total

Page 13



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves replacing the book return in the Park Branch library parking lot with a new unit that includes a lighter interior transport cart 

with caster wheels and an ergonomically designed handle.

Project # LIB-1314-01

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The interior steel transport cart of the present book return weighs approximately 100 pounds unloaded and its wheels do not swivel. The distance 

from the book return to the building is 105 feet; it is necessary to pull the cart around a corner to get to the building entrance. New transport carts 

are constructed from aluminum and weigh approximately 44 pounds. The design of the cart eliminates the need for hunching over to lift 

materials, the wheels swivel to turn corners easily, and it features an ergonomically designed wide handle.  Employees will be able to transport 

heavy loads without physical strain or injury.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Park Branch Library Book Return

Category Equipment: Miscellaneous

Type Equipment

Contact Library Director

Department Library

Total Project Cost: $7,500

Account # 13-88776

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

7,5007,500Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

7,500 7,500Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

7,5007,500Donor Opportunity

7,500 7,500Total

Page 14



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of the 1998 Ambulance.

Project # AMB-1213-01

Urgency 5 Future Consideration

 Justification

The unit being replaced is the reserve unit, and the current frontline unit will be placed as the reserve.  The reserve unit will be 19 years old in 

2017 while the front line unit 6 years old.  The reserve unit has  exceeded the expected serviceable life.

 Budget Impact/Other

The replacement of the reserve unit will provide a system with two serviceable ambulances.  The current budget accounts for the operations of 

two units, there may be a net minor decrease in maintenance costs.  Ongoing costs are annual fuel estimates with repairs anticipated to be under 

warranty.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Replace Ambulance Vehicle

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Ambulance

Total Project Cost: $150,000

Account # 13-88821

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

150,000150,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

150,000 150,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

150,000150,000GF:  Capital Improvements

150,000 150,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

15,0003,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000Supplies/Materials

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 15,000Total

Page 15



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Upgrade current Stryker Cot with the Stryker Power Pro XT for emergency medical transports.

Project # AMB-1314-01

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The Stryker Power-Pro XT provides greater safety to EMS/Fire personnel  when moving  and transporting patients in and out of the ambulance  

and raising patients from ground level to load level when moving from the scene to the ambulance.   The hydraulic system dramatically reduces 

strenuous lifting and the associated risk of back injury to personnel.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Hydraulic Stretcher

Category Equipment: Miscellaneous

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Ambulance

Total Project Cost: $17,142

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

17,14217,142Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

17,142 17,142Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

17,14217,142GF:  Capital Improvements

17,142 17,142Total

Page 16



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Lease payment for Fire engine purchased in FY 09/10.  Final payment is scheduled for July 1, 2015.

Project # FIRE-1112-03

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

 Budget Impact/Other

Some additional maintenance and fuel costs.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Fire Engine Lease Purchase (09/10)

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Fire

Total Project Cost: $352,760

Account # 13-88823

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

141,10470,552 70,552Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

70,552 70,552 141,104Total

Prior

211,656

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

141,10470,552 70,552GF:  Capital Improvements

70,552 70,552 141,104Total

Prior

211,656

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

75,00015,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000Maintenance

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000Total

Prior

45,000

Total

Page 17



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of the GO-4, Model BT-57, Three Wheel scooter with a four cylinder engine.  The vehicle is gas powered and is equipped with an 

automatic  transmition.  The replacement is necessary due to the  vehicle being ten years old and the amount of mileage and wear and tear on the 

vehicle. The replacement of this vehicle is part of the parking management plan.

Project # POL-1314-01

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

This request is to replace vehicle C-11 which was purchased in 2002 and is well beyond the five year limit. The vehicle currently has over 39,000 

miles on its  odometer. Because of its age and condition, a significantly greater chance of mechanical breakdown requiring costly repair can be 

anticipated in the not too  distant future. Replacement of this vehicle will continue our policy of rotating vehicles before they become too costly 

to maintain and is part of  the city's vehicle replacement plan.  

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Parking Scooter

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Police

Total Project Cost: $40,184

Account # 13-88531

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

40,18440,184Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

40,184 40,184Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

40,18440,184GF:  Capital Improvements

40,184 40,184Total

Page 18



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Dodge Charger Police Vehicle with automatic transmission and V-8 package: prisoner partition, double vertical gun locks, Rhino push bumper, 

prisoner seat, Whelan emergency light bar, lights and siren controller, siren speaker/bracket assembly, headlight flasher, center console, strobe 

power supply and strobe tubes, L-3 video system and mobile date terminal (MDT).

Project # POL-1314-02

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Patrol vehicles after five years of service have generally reached the 80,000 mile mark and are in need of replacement.  At this age and with the 

accumulation of miles, a significantly greater chance of mechanical breakdown requiring costly repairs can be anticipated if vehicles are allowed 

to go beyond their  usefulness.   Replacement of vehicles will continue the City's commitment to replace vehicles after five years of service so 

they don't become too costly to maintain.

 Budget Impact/Other

Cost for patrol vehicles include a 3-5% cost increase per year.

2014-2015:  two vehicles totaling $89,000:  a patrol vehicle ($54,000) and an admin/detective vehicle ($35,000).  

2015-2016:  one patrol vehicle ($56,000).

2016-2017:  two vehicles totaling $93,000:  a patrol vehicle ($63,000) and school vehicle ($30,000).

2017-2018:  $130,000 for two patrol vehicles ($65,000 each).

2018-2019: one patrol vehicle ($65,000).

Useful Life 5 years

Project Name Patrol Vehicles

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Police

Total Project Cost: $433,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

433,00089,000 56,000 93,000 130,000 65,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

89,000 56,000 93,000 130,000 65,000 433,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

433,00089,000 56,000 93,000 130,000 65,000GF:  Capital Improvements

89,000 56,000 93,000 130,000 65,000 433,000Total

Page 19



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Global Positioning System (GPS) and License plate Recognition (LPR) parking enforcement to be installed in G0-4 police parking unit. The  

purchase of this equipment is part of the Parking Management Plan.

Project # POL-1314-03

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

Technology using Global Positioning System (GPS) and License Plate Recognition (LPR) image capture has been developed for the purpose of 

parking enforcement. The city purchased a unit in 2008 and requested purchasing an additional unit.  Acquiring an additional unit will reduce 

likelihood of workers' compensation claims related to parking enforcement duties and increase parking enforcement. This item has been moved 

from 14/15 to 15/16 based on the direction identified during the Parking Management Study.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name GPS & License Plate Recognition

Category Equipment: Computers

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Police

Total Project Cost: $104,176

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

104,176104,176Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

104,176 104,176Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

104,176104,176GF:  Capital Improvements

104,176 104,176Total

Page 20



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Encryption is the blocking of radio transmissions through a system that scrambles the signal so people with scanners cannot listen to police traffic.

Encryption has been adopted as part of the county NGEN project.  The encryption would be installed in 50 department radios to include, patrol 

handhelds, vehicles, dispatch, and EOC stations. Without encryption we will not be able to communicate with other agencies.

Project # POL-1314-05

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

 Encryption of the radios is necessary to maintain communication with all of the other agencies in our county.  Without encryption we will not be 

able to hear or talk to any other agencies. Encryption will be required by 2015.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 5 years

Project Name Kenwood Radio Purchase & Encryption

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Police

Total Project Cost: $104,000

Account # 13-88539

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

72,00072,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

72,000 72,000Total

Prior

32,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

72,00072,000Measure D

72,000 72,000Total

Prior

32,000

Total

Page 21



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Update parking environmental and management study for the City of Carmel as identified as a City Council key initiative to implement a parking 

management plan.

Project # POL-1415-04

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The Walker Study was completed during the 13/14 budget year as part of the Key Initiative (Parking Management Plan).  This project calls for 

an update of a parking management  program for the City.  Funding in 2014-2015 for a project identified in the planning process.

 Budget Impact/Other

Budget impacts are to be determined depending on the identified Phase II project, if any.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Parking Management Study

Category Equipment: Miscellaneous

Type Equipment

Contact Public Safety Director

Department Safety: Police

Total Project Cost: $725,000

Account # 13-88540

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

700,000474,000 226,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

474,000 226,000 700,000Total

Prior

25,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

467,000241,000 226,000GF:  Capital Improvements
233,000233,000Measure D

474,000 226,000 700,000Total

Prior

25,000

Total

Page 22



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

The City received a $250,000 grant from the Coastal Conservancy for the implementation of the Del Mar Master Plan.  The plan has been 

implemented and is near completion.  In the first phase of the project a pathway was constructed along San Antonio Avenue connecting Ocean 

and 4th Avenues.  The second phase of the project would place a pathway on the beach connecting the Del Mar parking area to 8th Avenue (see 

FPB1415-04) and will utilize the remaining $60,000 of grant funds allocated toward this project.

Project # CPB-1213-02

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The Del Mar Master Plan encourages improving pedestrian circulation between the north end of the Beach Bluff Pathway at 8th Avenue and the 

Del Mar Avenue parking lot.  The City will explore options for additional grant funding, but may be required to draw from the General Fund.

 Budget Impact/Other

Ongoing budget impacts would be maintenance and repair pathways and walkways.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Del Mar Master Plan - Phase II Pathway

Category Beach

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $250,000

Account # 13-88405

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

60,00060,000Construction/Maintenance

60,000 60,000Total

Prior

190,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

60,00060,000Grants

60,000 60,000Total

Prior

190,000

Total

Page 23



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves undergrounding the overhead utility lines on the remaining portion of Scenic Road from Ocean Avenue to Eight Avenue.

Project # PW 1415-05

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

Undergrounding utilities would improve the aesthetics and may qualify for Rule 20A funds from PG&E if Scenic is considered as a major road 

or right-of-way. It could also be funded by residents through an assessment district.

 Budget Impact/Other

No impact to the City's budget.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Scenic: Ocean to 8th Ave. Utility Undergrounding

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $600,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

600,000600,000Construction/Maintenance

600,000 600,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

600,000600,000Measure D

600,000 600,000Total

Page 24



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves undergrounding the overhead utility lines from the City boundary from Ocean Avenue to Torres Street.The project qualifies 

for PG&E Rule 20A funds, recovered through electric rates upon project completion.

Project # PW 1415-06

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

The project qualifies for Rule 20A funds as street, road or right-of-way adjoins or passes through a civic area or public recreation area or an area 

of unusual scenic interest to the general public.

 Budget Impact/Other

No impact.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Ocean Avenue to Torres Utility Undergrounding

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $1,100,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

1,100,0001,100,000Construction/Maintenance

1,100,000 1,100,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

260,000260,000GF:  Capital Improvements
840,000840,000Unfunded

1,100,000 1,100,000Total

Page 25



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the patching and overlay of various street identified within the Nichols Pavement Management Study (2013) based on the 

street's condtion, as determined by its Pavement Condition Index (PCI). This assumes $814,000 annually for maintenance to maintain an average 

PCI of 63.

Project # PW-1112-01

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

The street improvement priorities represent data from the Nichols Pavement Study, analysis and observation from Neill Engineers and 

recommendations from Public Services staff.  Cost estimates range from $3.00 per square foot for a two-inch thick asphalt overlay to $22.00 per 

square foot for a seven-inch thick concrete pavement repair section plus 20% for engineering and contingencies.

 Budget Impact/Other

It costs less to maintain a street in good condition than to repair a street that has failed. Funding for preventative maintenance helps reduce the 

costs associated with deferred maintenance of roads.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Street and Road Projects

Category Street Reconstruction

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $6,166,400

Account # 13-89585

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

814,000162,800 162,800 162,800 162,800 162,800Planning/Design
4,070,000814,000 814,000 814,000 814,000 814,000Construction/Maintenance

976,800 976,800 976,800 976,800 976,800 4,884,000Total

Prior

1,282,400

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

3,134,000626,800 626,800 626,800 626,800 626,800Measure D
1,000,000200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000Road Impact Fund

750,000150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000Traffic Safety

976,800 976,800 976,800 976,800 976,800 4,884,000Total

Prior

1,282,400

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

75,00015,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000Staff Cost
25,0005,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000Supplies/Materials

20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 100,000Total

Page 26



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Purchase (2) medium sized ½-ton pick-up trucks to replace the (2) existing gardener vehicles (1) with a pick-up bed and (1) with a utility bed.

Project # PW-1213-04

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Both existing vehicles are 15 years old and have extensive use and mileage that is excessive for their age. Each existing vehicle is used for 

hauling various items to conduct gardening throughout the City on the beach, in parks and along the public right-of-ways. One truck has a pick-

up style bed and the other is a small flat-bed utility.

 Budget Impact/Other

Continued maintenance of the existing vehicles is increasing.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Gardener Trucks

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $85,000

Account # 13-88629

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

85,00040,000 45,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

40,000 45,000 85,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

85,00040,000 45,000GF:  Capital Improvements

40,000 45,000 85,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

1,300500 200 200 200 200Maintenance

500 200 200 200 200 1,300Total

Page 27



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Purchase (1) five-yard Dump Truck with hydraulic dump bed.

Project # PW-1213-05

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The existing dump truck was purchased in 1995 and was underpowered when it was bought. Due to this situation, it has been over-loaded at 

times with asphalt, sand, gravel and many other materials needed to conduct repairs on City streets, storm drains etc. which has necessitated 

brake replacement on a regular basis and poses braking problems for the weight hauled.

 Budget Impact/Other

Increasing costs for maintenance and repairs and increased down time for the vehicle being out of service.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Dump Truck

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $90,000

Account # 13-88583

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

90,00090,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

90,000 90,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

90,00090,000GF:  Capital Improvements

90,000 90,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

1,8001,000 200 200 200 200Maintenance

1,000 200 200 200 200 1,800Total

Page 28



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Purchase a new 2-ton utility truck with a 500 gallon water tank and pump for tree and/or street maintenance.

Project # PW-1213-06

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

This equipment is needed to implement the Forest Management Plan.  This vehicle is used every day to haul water for tree watering and street 

maintenance. In addition, this vehicle is a vital piece of equipment for maintaining storm water issues and washing out culverts. It can also serve 

as a back-up water tender for fighting fires. The existing vehicle is a 1994 Ford. Engine life, brakes and transmission have become issues due to 

mileage and age.

 Budget Impact/Other

Increasing maintenance costs with vehicle age.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Water Truck

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $80,000

Account # 13-88584

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

80,00080,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

80,000 80,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

80,00080,000GF:  Capital Improvements

80,000 80,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

1,000200 200 200 200 200Maintenance

200 200 200 200 200 1,000Total

Page 29



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Re-route the existing storm drain in this area off private property onto City property for proper maintenance and to prevent flooding. This project 

includes the overlay of 5th Ave. between Guadalupe and Torres, thereby smoothing out an existing street.

Project # PW-1213-07

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

The current drainage line is located on private property and is maintained by the City. Accessing private property for proper maintenance is often 

limited and poses other difficulties. The existing piping runs under existing houses, posing another undesirable situation. This system has existed 

for many years and is very antiquated.

 Budget Impact/Other

Maintenance would be part of the existing storm drain and streets programs.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Guadalupe to 5th Storm Drain

Category Storm Drainage

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $350,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

350,000350,000Construction/Maintenance

350,000 350,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

350,000350,000GF:  Capital Improvements

350,000 350,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

500100 100 100 100 100Maintenance

100 100 100 100 100 500Total

Page 30



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

The Transportation Agency for Monterey County prepared the Bicycle and Pedestrian Master Plan in 2011 identifed twelve bikeway projects, or 

six miles of bikeway improvements costing approximately $700,000. An updated gap analysis is currently being produced to develop a plan to 

connect Carmel to the regional system of bicycle and pedestrain trails and will be incorporated into the Bicyle Plan and Regional Transportation 

Plan.

Project # PW-1314-01

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The Circulation Element of the General Plan, Policy 02-6, directs the City to promote and participate in alternative transportation programs.  The 

City may undertake improvements to identified bikeway projects while exploring the development of additional bikeways.

 Budget Impact/Other

Environmental review will be required for the development of bikeway paths. Once developed, new bikeway paths will increase the number of 

miles needing to be maintained by City staff.

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Bikeway Projects

Category Street Construction

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $610,000

Account # 13-89587

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

30,00030,000Planning/Design
580,00020,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000Construction/Maintenance

50,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 610,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

560,000140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000Grants
50,00050,000Measure D

50,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 610,000Total

Page 31



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the removal and replacement of existing sidewalk, including the replacement of existing pavement with permeable pavers as 

applicable.

Project # PW-1415-01

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

Replacement  increases the safety of pedestrains, improves water retention and improves the aesthetics of sidewalks in the business/commercial 

district.

 Budget Impact/Other

Replacment of existing sidewalk reduces the cost to maintain and repair aging sidewalk and reduces potential liability from trip and fall claims.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Sidewalk Repair

Category Street Paving

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $375,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

56,25011,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250Planning/Design
318,75063,750 63,750 63,750 63,750 63,750Construction/Maintenance

75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 375,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

375,00075,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000Measure D

75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 375,000Total

Future

0

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

00 0 0 0 0Staff Cost
00 0 0 0 0Supplies/Materials

0 0 0 0 0 0Total

Page 32



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the replacement of existing storm drains throughout the City as follows:

N/E Casanova and 11th, N/W Monte Verde and 9th, N/E Lincoln and 11th- 2014-15

N/E Torres and 8th, N/W San Antonio and 13th- 2015-16

Mission and 10th, Mission and 11th- 2016-17

N/E Camino Real and 8th, Northside Mt. View to S/W Guadalupe- 2017-18

North Casanova to 4th, N/E Camino Real and 12th-2018-19

Project # PW-1415-02

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Upgrading of the storm drains will assist in efforts to prevent flooding and help capture additional debris from entering the storm drain system.

 Budget Impact/Other

Storm drains are routinely cleaned of debris as part of maintenance.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Storm Drain Replacement

Category Storm Drainage

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $165,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

165,00045,000 25,000 35,000 30,000 30,000Construction/Maintenance

45,000 25,000 35,000 30,000 30,000 165,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

65,00035,000 30,000GF:  Capital Improvements
30,00030,000Measure D
70,00045,000 25,000Unfunded

45,000 25,000 35,000 30,000 30,000 165,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

500100 100 100 100 100Maintenance

100 100 100 100 100 500Total

Page 33



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project invovles the redesign of and replacement of storm drain on E/S Carpenter between 4th and 5th.

Project # PW-1415-03

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

This project has been identified  in previous drainage studies and will help minimize damage to property.

 Budget Impact/Other

Minimal impact to storm drain maintenance budget. However, the improvements may prevent costly damage resulting from flooding.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Carpenter to 4th Storm Drain

Category Storm Drainage

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $350,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

30,00030,000Planning/Design
320,000320,000Construction/Maintenance

350,000 350,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

350,000350,000GF:  Capital Improvements

350,000 350,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

500100 100 100 100 100Maintenance

100 100 100 100 100 500Total

Page 34



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves undergrounding the overhead utility lines on Ocean Avenue from Casanova to Del Mar, including the removal of a utility 

pole at the corner of San Antonio.  The project qualifies for PG&E Rule 20A funds, recovered through electric rates upon project completion.

Project # PW-1415-04

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The project qualifies for Rule 20A funds as street, road or right-of-way adjoins or passes through a civic area or public recreation area or an area 

of unusual scenic interest to the general public.

 Budget Impact/Other

The cost of the project is estimated to be $1.2 million. The City has a current allocation of $670,000 and may borrow up to five years worth of its 

future allocation ($185,000) for a total cost of $850,000. The project balance of $400,000 could be funded by the City or by residents through an 

assessment district if initiated by Council.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Ocean Ave Utility Undergrounding

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services:  Public Works

Total Project Cost: $1,200,000

Account #

Future

1,200,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

100,000100,000GF:  Capital Improvements
850,000850,000Intergovernmental
100,000100,000Measure D

100,000 100,000 850,000 1,050,000Total

Future

200,000

Total

Page 35



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

In 2011 the City Council adopted a Water Conservation Plan.  The purpose of the plan is to assess the City’s current water usage and identify 

opportunities for water conservation projects.  Projects may include retrofitting City facilities and irrigation systems, public outreach and the 

construction of rain harvesting systems.  The City would first seek out grants as a potential source of funding.

Project # CPB-1314-01

Urgency 5 Future Consideration

 Justification

In October, 2009 the State Water Control Resources Board issued a Cease and Desist Order requiring that Cal-Am cease its unauthorized 

diversions by December 31, 2016.   With the unresolved issues related to finding a regional water solution, it is important that the City of Carmel-

by-the-Sea be proactive in determining how to prepare for a restricted water supply in the future.

 Budget Impact/Other

New water projects may require regular maintenance and repair.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Water Conservation Projects

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Comm. Planning & Bldg Dir

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $30,000

Account # 13-88410

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

30,00010,000 10,000 10,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 10,000 10,000 30,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

20,00010,000 10,000Grants

10,000 10,000 20,000Total

Prior

10,000

Total

Prior

0

Total

Page 36



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the repair of wood rot and rebuilding of window frames and repainting the First Murphy House.

Project # FAC- 1415-01

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Painting is a preventative maintenance effort and will visually enhance the appearance of this historic property.

 Budget Impact/Other

This is a one-time expense.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name First Murphy Painting

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $10,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

10,00010,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 10,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

10,00010,000GF:  Capital Improvements

10,000 10,000Total

Page 37



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves improving the accessibility to the Piccadilly Park public restroom.

Project # FAC 1415-02

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Piccadilly Park is a corner park in the business district and the project would enhance the accessibility of the restroom for residents and visitors. 

Recommended in 2013 Facility Assessment Report.

 Budget Impact/Other

Minimal to no impact on annual budget.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Picadilly Park Restroom Improvements

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $40,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

10,00010,000Planning/Design
30,00030,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 30,000 40,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

50,00010,000 40,000Unfunded

10,000 40,000 50,000Total

Page 38



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of existing lighting console that has passed end of its expected lifespan, does not operate with current technology standards, and has 

demonstrated critical hardware malfunctions interrupting shows in progress. The purchase of a new console is needed as soon as possible to 

ensure basic theatrical lighting needs are met, and our ability to support modern lighting needs requested by clients.

Project # FAC 1415-03

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

Page 18, Section 7.1 of the Operating Agreement calls for this project to be a City responsibility.  Current equipment is in the tenth year of use, 

at the end of its expected life span of 7 to 10 years; 	Impractical to repair or maintain; At risk for unpredictable system crashes at any time before 

or during a production; Uses an old floppy disk drive that is difficult to operate, program, and backup information; Uses an older Net 1 protocol 

vs. the current Net 2 protocol, and is not capable of operating intelligent or moving fixtures that some productions require.

 Budget Impact/Other

Sunset Center Theater remains at risk of losing a production with the next system crash.

Failure of current board would result in costly rental in the amount of $400 for each production or $3,000 per month. Sunset Center Theater will 

continue to operate with outdated and less desirable technology, while not being able to accommodate lighting requirements for many of our 

users and growing network of clients.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Sunset Center Lighting Console

Category Equipment: Miscellaneous

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $19,500

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

19,50019,500Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

19,500 19,500Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

19,50019,500GF:  Capital Improvements

19,500 19,500Total

Page 39



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of existing analog sound board that is near the end of its expected lifespan, becoming impractical to maintain, has outdated 

technology, and requires costly equipment rentals to add required features. The purchase of a new digital board will bring the theater to a current 

level of audio technology standards, while significantly reducing rental, maintenance, and labor costs to operate.

Project # FAC 1415-04

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Page 18, Section 7.1 of the Operating Agreement calls for this project to be a City responsibility.  Current equipment is in the eighth year of use, 

reaching the end of its expected life span of 7 to 10 years;  At risk for failure that will impact a production, or put a production in jeopardy; 

	Outdated analog technology, and often results in additional costs to rent supplemental equipment to add required effects and capacity.  	Bulky, 

with customary in-house setup requiring space that removes at least 20 sellable seats from our inventory vs. 10 seats with a new digital unit.

 Budget Impact/Other

Delay will progress the inevitable wear of current board, increasing likelihood of equipment failure. Sunset Center Theater will continue to 

operate with outdated and less desirable technology, and incur supplemental equipment rental costs to meet audio requirements.

	Costs for repair/refurbishment which might otherwise be more practically applied towards purchase of a new unit. Failure of current board would 

result in costly rental in the amount of $500 for each production or $3,750 per month. 	Continued loss of ticket sales revenue in the amount of an 

average of $800 per show.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Sunset Center Digital Sound Board

Category Equipment: Miscellaneous

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $62,500

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

62,50062,500Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

62,500 62,500Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

62,50062,500GF:  Capital Improvements

62,500 62,500Total

Page 40



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Construct a ramp to serve as a pedestrian walkway from the Mission Street sidewalk to Carpenter Hall. This walkway would provide ease of 

access for all users of the facility including those with wheelchairs, walkers, or other physical challenges

Project # FAC 1415-05

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Carpenter Hall is not ADA accessible from Mission Street. The project would address needs of the public and bring this facility into compliance. 

ADA access to Carpenter Hall is currently only available from the exterior of the building near the north parking lot. All access from Mission 

Street and from inside the building are limited to stairs only. Recommended in 2013 Facility Assessment Report.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Sunset Center Ramp Construction

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $35,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

10,00010,000Planning/Design
25,00025,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 25,000 35,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

35,00010,000 25,000Unfunded

10,000 25,000 35,000Total

Page 41



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Construct an awning to cover the outdoor space near the concession area. This 22’ x 44’ structure would be designed and built to connect to the 

Promenade Lobby roof and supported by the existing arbor columns. This project would provide outdoor event space and an expanded 

concession service area year-round.

Project # FAC 1415-06

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

The proposed area has an arbor with climbing plants, and is not functional to support theater or lobby events. This project proposal is in response 

to feedback from theater patrons as well as event organizers seeking more space and increased capacity for events in the lobby. The new outdoor 

space would greatly enhance Sunset Center’s ability to service our current user groups, attract new business, and reach goals to upgrade 

concessions service. Additionally, the awning would help protect the part of the building proven to be most vulnerable to harsh weather 

conditions, especially wind and driving rain that has already begun to deteriorate the structure. Recommendation in 2013 Facility Assessment 

Report.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Sunset Center Awning

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $45,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

10,00010,000Planning/Design
35,00035,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 35,000 45,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

45,00010,000 35,000Measure D

10,000 35,000 45,000Total

Page 42



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project is the replacement of the water proof membrane and concrete roof/patio structure at the front of the Police Department and over the 

Public Works garage/shop.

Project # FAC-1213-01

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

This item has long been identified as a necessary and paramount matter for repairs. The existing structure is riddled with leaks that have rusted 

and deteriorated the reinforcing steel within the slab/roof. The structure is a vital building housing all of the Public Works equipment and 

personnel.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name PD/PW Roof/Patio Replacement

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $1,075,000

Account # 13-89431-0001

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

75,00075,000Planning/Design
1,000,000500,000 500,000Construction/Maintenance

75,000 500,000 500,000 1,075,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

500,000500,000GF:  Capital Improvements
575,00075,000 500,000Measure D

75,000 500,000 500,000 1,075,000Total

Page 43



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project is to paint the Police Department and Public Works buildings both interior and exterior. (This project does NOT include the interior 

of the shop area.)

Project # FAC-1213-02

Urgency 5 Future Consideration

 Justification

Both of these facilities are high profile use for both City staff and the public. The last time they received a thorough painting was about 25 years 

ago. Peeling, chipping and fading have occurred throughout both rendering an unsightly and old, dirty appearance.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name PD/PW Re-Painting

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $27,000

Account # 13- 89433

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

27,00027,000Construction/Maintenance

27,000 27,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

27,00027,000GF:  Capital Improvements

27,000 27,000Total

Page 44



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project would replace the old heating/cooling system on the rooftop of the Police Department.

Project # FAC-1213-04

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

The new system would be a "dual-pac" type unit that provides cooling and heating throughout the building. The existing unit is outdated and too 

small for the workload of cooling the Police Department, especially with all the computers in use and the doors closed to maintain proper 

security. The existing hot-mop tar roofing is cracked and worn due to age. It is approximately 25 years old and roofing of this type is generally 

replaced about every 10-15 years.

 Budget Impact/Other

The ventilation system would come with a manufacturer's warranty, generally one year. The roof would be warranted for approximately 5 years 

by the roofing contractor. Regular maintenance would be handled by City staff through their regular budget accounts.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name PD HVAC Replacement and Re-Roof

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $400,000

Account # 13-89431

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

50,00050,000Planning/Design
350,000350,000Construction/Maintenance

50,000 350,000 400,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

50,00050,000GF:  Capital Improvements
350,000350,000Measure D

50,000 350,000 400,000Total

Page 45



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replace the existing wood stage located outside the Bingham/Chapman rooms on the exterior patio area.

Project # FAC-1213-08

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The existing stage is approximately 30 years old and is rotted and deteriorated beyond repair. It is used regularly by occupants of the complex for 

rehearsals and performances on the patio. It is an integral part of the complex.

 Budget Impact/Other

Current maintenance has become a patch and repair matter as needed. Future maintenance would be less the first few years of use and then 

handled through regular maintenance by City staff.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Sunset Center Wood Patio Stage Replacement

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $10,000

Account # 13-88691

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

10,00010,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 10,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

10,00010,000Donor Opportunity

10,000 10,000Total

Page 46



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This building is located at the lower parking lot at the N/W corner of Mission and 10th. It was re-roofed in 1985 when the City Hall offices 

occupied it during the City Hall remodel. It is a composition roof and requires replacement.

Project # FAC-1213-09

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

When it was done in 1985 the composition roof was expected to last about 15 years. The new materials would match the existing composition 

shingles.

 Budget Impact/Other

5 year contractor warranty and 10 year on the materials is normal for this type of work. Future maintenance would be minimal for at least 10 

years.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Sunset Center Bach Offices Building Re-Roof

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $25,000

Account # 13-88694

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

25,00025,000Construction/Maintenance

25,000 25,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

25,00025,000GF:  Capital Improvements

25,000 25,000Total

Page 47



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project includes the repair/replacement of the planters and paver walkway at the main entrance to the Sunset offices off San Carlos. It also 

includes the removal and replacement of the stone planters that have deteriorated over time and have been displaced by tree roots outside the 

Carpenter Hall area at the Mission side entrance and the Cottage 16 area on Mission Street near 10th Avenue.

Project # FAC-1213-10

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The stone entry planters have deteriorated with age and the tree roots have created an uneven walking surface necessitating attention. Full 

replacement/repair to bring the entry to new standards is recommended.

 Budget Impact/Other

Future maintenance would be substantially reduced and would fall under regular maintenance schedules in the current budgeted account.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Sunset Center Planter Re-construction

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $27,000

Account # 13-88695

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

27,00027,000Construction/Maintenance

27,000 27,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

27,00027,000GF:  Capital Improvements

27,000 27,000Total

Page 48



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

The project proposal includes an infra-red  analysis of the affected areas to determine the extent of the leaking. A roofing contractor would then 

remove roofing materials, make the necessary repairs and re-roof the affected area. Staff is aware of all the leaking areas and will supervise the 

project closely. The project would include downspout and gutter repairs.

Project # FAC-1213-11

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

Multiple roof leaks exist in the Sunset Center; analysis is needed to determine if it is a design or construction flaw.  Water leakage could result in 

further internal damage to the facility.

 Budget Impact/Other

With the leaks repaired the interior damage would cease. Future maintenance would be reduced.   It is expected that the project would not exceed 

the amount proposed.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Sunset Center Roof Repairs

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $75,352

Account # 13-88697

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

75,35275,352Construction/Maintenance

75,352 75,352Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

75,35275,352SCC Retainage

75,352 75,352Total

Page 49



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the east side of the complex along the Carpenter Hall area that was not part of the overall remodel and has not been painted 

for approximately 30 years and the north side of the complex along the pay-parking lot.

Project # FAC-1213-14

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

This is a deferred maintenance project.  Staff has patched and spot painted for years but repaint is necessary aesthetically and to protect the 

surface.

 Budget Impact/Other

New paint reduces staff time for patching thereby saving time and funds for other necessities.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Sunset Center Re-painting

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $25,000

Account # 13-88696

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

25,00025,000Construction/Maintenance

25,000 25,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

25,00025,000GF:  Capital Improvements

25,000 25,000Total

Page 50



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project would be a complete paint job on the main library building exterior. All trim and walls are included. Colors would match the existing 

unless the City Council chooses otherwise.

Project # FAC-1213-16

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The building received a paint job about 26 years ago just before the roofing was removed and replaced repairing all the leaks. This building is a 

very high profile facility.

 Budget Impact/Other

Painting contractors generally don’t provide a warranty, however the materials to be used would be the highest quality and any discrepancies in 

workmanship would be covered.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Harrison Memorial Library Re-painting Project

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $28,000

Account # 13-89780

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

28,00028,000Construction/Maintenance

28,000 28,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

28,00028,000GF:  Capital Improvements

28,000 28,000Total

Page 51



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Key card building security and access system.  The system would utilize employee identification cards for facility access reducing the need to 

maintain keys while enhancing security and control of access.  The project would include a Proximity Card Reader at each entrance, Proximity 

Cards for those authorized to access facilities, Installation, a Power Supply, Motion Sensor, Magnetic Locks, Operating Software, Access Control 

Panel, Enrollment Station, Interface Board, Wiring, and a Time Delay Button.

Project # FAC-1213-20

Urgency 5 Future Consideration

 Justification

The existing keyed lock system to secure city facilities does not provide the necessary level of security for City facilities.  The current system 

could face degraded security due to lost keys, key duplication, or unauthorized access-code sharing.  This project can be scaled over time.

 Budget Impact/Other

None

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Card Key Security System

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $25,000

Account # 13-88408

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

25,00025,000Construction/Maintenance

25,000 25,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

25,00025,000GF:  Capital Improvements

25,000 25,000Total

Page 52



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Broadly defined, the scope of work includes: 1) demolition and reconstruction of all of the stage area except the existing understage concrete 

structure which currently houses the Children's Experimental Theater, dressing rooms, storage space, etc.; 2) demolition and reconstruction of the 

audience seating area; 3) demolition and reconstruction of a show production booth; 4) demolition and reconstruction of the concession building, 

restrooms, box office, and pathways to the various buildings, audience seating, and stage so all are ADA compliant; and 5) demolition and 

reconstruction of the parking area.

Project # FAC-1213-21

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

This historic asset requires maintenance upgrades to meet current needs of the theater and to facilitate access for the visiting public.  The 

renovation components of both phases can be segregated and accomplished at later dates based on budgetary constraints.  Without certain 

upgrades the facility will not be useable.

 Budget Impact/Other

None

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Forest Theater Renovation

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $1,150,000

Account # 13-89676

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

1,130,000180,000 950,000Construction/Maintenance

180,000 950,000 1,130,000Total

Prior

20,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

475,000475,000Donor Opportunity
180,000180,000Grants
475,000475,000Measure D

180,000 950,000 1,130,000Total

Page 53



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves fumigating City Hall, refinishing the redwood walls of the Council Chambers, cleaning the exterior of the building and 

replacing chairs in City Hall offices and Chambers.

Project # FAC-1314-01

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Maintenance of City Hall Chambers is needed to preserve the building while new chairs are needed for City Hall Offices and Chambers to create 

comfortable seating for City staff and the public. The redwood walls were last sealed in 1985.

 Budget Impact/Other

This involves a one-time cost associated with the purchase of new chairs and the cost of contractural services for renovations.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name City Hall Renovations

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $180,000

Account # 13-89426

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

20,00020,000Construction/Maintenance
10,00010,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

30,000 30,000Total

Future

150,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

30,00030,000Measure D

30,000 30,000Total

Future

150,000

Total

Page 54



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves accessibility renovations and other improvements to the Scout House. The project includes designing an exterior lift from 

Mission Street to the entry patio, renovating the existing restrooms, replacing the roof and gutters, electrical and plumbing repairs, exterior 

painting and landscaping.

Project # FAC-1314-02

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

An analysis of the feasibility of the upgrades was conducted in 1999 and estimated the cost of the accessibility renovations at $284,000 and other 

improvements at $87,000.  Accounting for inflation, the estimated cost for these improvements would be $391,385.  Once renovated to meet 

accessibility requirements, the facility could be used for community and private events.

 Budget Impact/Other

The City currently pays for minimal preventative maintenance and security costs associated with this building.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Scout House Renovations

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $400,000

Account # 13-89436

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

50,00050,000Planning/Design
350,000350,000Construction/Maintenance

50,000 350,000 400,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

175,000175,000Donor Opportunity
175,000175,000Grants

50,00050,000Measure D

50,000 350,000 400,000Total

Page 55



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the installation of six new entry doors at the Sunset Center.

Project # FAC-1314-04

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The current doors are showing signs of weathering and need replaced.

 Budget Impact/Other

Maintenance costs are currently incurred to prevent the doors from leaking.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Sunset Center Door Replacement

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $35,000

Account # 13-88698

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

35,00035,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

35,000 35,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

35,00035,000GF:  Capital Improvements

35,000 35,000Total

Page 56



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the installation of new carpet or carpet tiles in the public areas of the Harrison Library Park Branch building.

Project # LIB-1112-01

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

The existing carpet was installed in 1989.  The high traffic areas open to the public -  Youth Services, Local History and the lobby - are showing 

signs of wear and tear, including fraying, stains and fading.  Additionally, the carpet behind the Local History desk is threadbare and there are 

what appears to be acid burns etched into the carpet in Youth Services.

 Budget Impact/Other

None.

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Park Branch Library carpeting

Category Buildings

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $43,000

Account # 13-89778

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

43,00043,000Construction/Maintenance

43,000 43,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

43,00043,000Measure D

43,000 43,000Total

Page 57



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves repainting the interior of the Park Branch library.

Project # LIB-1213-03

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The interior of the Park Branch library has not been painted since 1989, when the building first opened.  The paint is chipped off walls 

throughout the building, and the walls and baseboards are scuffed and dirty.

 Budget Impact/Other

None

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Park Branch Library Painting - Interior

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $22,000

Account # 13-89779

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

22,00022,000Construction/Maintenance

22,000 22,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

18,00018,000GF:  Capital Improvements

18,000 18,000Total

Page 58



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves determining what would be necessary to get the Park Branch Library basement in usable condition, and potentially 

capturing and diverting the water from the underground stream underneath the basement for use by the City. The proposed cost is based upon 

possible interior waterproofing and other remediation costs.

Project # LIB-1314-02

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

The Park Branch Library basement constitutes over 1,000 square feet of unusable space.  The French Drain underneath the building is backed up 

and that section of the building suffers from water intrusion in rainy weather. That section of the basement requires immediate remediation. It 

will be necessary to mitigate the water intrusion to make the environment safe and to prevent further deterioration of that section of the building.

The 2013-2014 phase of the project is to examine alternatives to solve and remediate the problem.  The 2014-2015 phase includes remediation 

and a placeholder for repair.  The repair placeholder was refined based on the findings from the 2013-2014 study.

 Budget Impact/Other

Useful Life n/a

Project Name Park Branch Basement Restoration

Category Buildings

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Services: Facilities

Total Project Cost: $85,000

Account # 13-88777

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

75,00075,000Construction/Maintenance

75,000 75,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

75,00075,000Measure D

75,000 75,000Total

Page 59



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Renovation of the landscaping, irrigation, and walking surface along the Scenic Pathway.

Project # FPB 1415-01

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The Scenic Pathway is over 25 years old and is in need of an overhaul. Many of the original plantings along the path are gone and have not been 

replaced or the plants are suffering from low levels of maintenance and irrigation infrastructure deficiencies. The pathway surface has been worn 

down from heavy use and is in need of redefinition and resurfacing. Maintaining the landscaping and pathway is an implementation element of 

the Shoreline Master Plan and a 2014 key initiative.

 Budget Impact/Other

Once renovated, there will be ongoing costs to maintain the plantings and pathway by staff or through a landscape mainteance contract as well as 

costs of irrigation through the Del Mar tank or water meter.

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Scenic Pathway and Landscape Renovation

Category Beach

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $150,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

15,00015,000Planning/Design
135,000135,000Construction/Maintenance

150,000 150,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

150,000150,000GF:  Capital Improvements

150,000 150,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

20,0005,000 5,000 5,000 5,000Maintenance

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 20,000Total

Page 60



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This proposal is to: (1) replace the entire existing wood chip play surface with new fill material to the  appropriate level for each apparatus in the 

playground area, (2) replace the wood border around the playground, (3) install a new wood border around the outer edge of the decomposed 

granite pathway and park benches to better define the pathway and keep soil from eroding onto the pathway and beneath the benches, and (4) 

redress, level , and compact all of the decomposed paths in the lower park. The project also inlcudes improvemetns to the basketball court.

Project # FPB 1415-02

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The current playground fill material has been supplemented around individual apparatus, but the entire play area is in need of new fill material to 

the appropriate level for playground safety. The current wood log border around the playground is original to the playground construction. It has 

held up well but is starting to deteriorate and is not visually pleasing. Soil tends to erode onto the pathway around the playground and benches. 

This is not particularly attractive and creates maintenance problems. A wood border will correct the erosion issue, simplify maintenance of the 

pathway, and look more attractive. The decomposed granite paths have lost their definition and other than small repairs have not been renovated 

since 1998.

 Budget Impact/Other

Minor annual budget costs associated with upkeep of pathway and playground equipment once renovated.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Forest Hill Park playground improvements

Category Park: Forest Hills

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $38,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

38,00038,000Construction/Maintenance

38,000 38,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

38,00038,000GF:  Capital Improvements

38,000 38,000Total

Page 61



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Repairs to the wood stairway, called Martha’s Way, which lies in the 3rd Ave. right-of way between San Carlos St. and Dolores St.

Project # FPB 1415-03

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

This wood and decomposed granite (DG), crib-style construction, stairway is an important pedestrian connection between San Carlos and 

Dolores Streets through the undeveloped 3rd Ave. right-of-way. It has many wood elements that are failing or have significant decay that need to 

be replaced to provide safe passage of pedestrians. The DG walking surface also needs replacement.Though not heavily used, the stairway 

provides a significant trail connection in this section of town and may experience more use if repaired and signage installed on San Carlos and 

Dolores to let people know of its existence.

 Budget Impact/Other

Once repaired, regular maintenance is required to keep the stairs free of debris and vegetation. This will either  be a staff assignment or an 

addition to the City landscape maintenance contract. Estimate $1,800 per year for biweekly attention.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Martha's Way stair repair

Category Park Improvements

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $30,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

30,00030,000Construction/Maintenance

30,000 30,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

30,00030,000GF:  Capital Improvements

30,000 30,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

7,2001,800 1,800 1,800 1,800Maintenance

1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 7,200Total

Page 62



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of the existing asphalt sidewalks on the north and south sides of Ocean Ave. between San Antonio Ave. and Del Mar Ave. with 

permeable pavers

Project # FPB 1415-04

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

The new sidewalks will improve pedestrian safety and the appearance of the sidewalks and allow water to percolate into the soil. This sidewalk 

project is an implementation element of the parking policies and objectives in the Del Mar Master Plan. The sidewalk replacement project was a 

bid alternate for the Del Mar/Ocean Ave. parking and circulation improvement project, but was not implemented due to lack of funding.  Partial 

grant funding from the Del Mar Master Plan improvements (CPB-1213-02) will be used for the sidewalk.

 Budget Impact/Other

The City has a $32,000 grant for this project and up to an additional $30,000 from under expended projects under the same grant that can be 

used to complete the sidewalk replacement. There is a deadline of September 30, 2014 for the funds to be spent.

Useful Life 20 years

Project Name Del Mar Plan sidewalk replacement

Category Beach

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $120,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

120,000120,000Construction/Maintenance

120,000 120,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

60,00060,000Grants
60,00060,000Unfunded

120,000 120,000Total

Page 63



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Additional landscaping, mulch and irrigation along the north and south sides of Ocean Ave. between Camino Real St. and San Antonio Ave.

Project # FPB 1415-05

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

This section of Ocean Ave. has very little landscaping except for trees and a few large shrubs. Planting native understory ground covers will 

improve the appearance of this area and control weed growth.

 Budget Impact/Other

After completion additional landscape maintenance will be required, including costs of irrigation. Estimate $2,400 per year.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Lower Ocean landscape improvements

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $35,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

35,00035,000Construction/Maintenance

35,000 35,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

35,00035,000GF:  Capital Improvements

35,000 35,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

4,8002,400 2,400Maintenance

2,400 2,400 4,800Total

Page 64



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Renovation of the landscape areas along the south side of Ocean Ave. between Forest Rd. and Junipero Ave.

Project # FPB 1415-06

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The landscaping in this area, except for the large trees, is mostly past its prime or has been already removed. This area has a low level of 

maintenance and has some infrastructure deficiencies. 

This is one of the prime entrances to Carmel and it should present a positive image of the City. A draft landscape plan has been developed but 

has not been reviewed by all appropriate staff, City Commissions or the City Council.

 Budget Impact/Other

Once completed there will be additional maintenance required. Estimate $6,000 per year

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Upper Ocean Ave. landscape improvement

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $100,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

100,000100,000Construction/Maintenance

100,000 100,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

100,000100,000Measure D

100,000 100,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

18,0006,000 6,000 6,000Maintenance

6,000 6,000 6,000 18,000Total

Page 65



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Use goats to control invasive plants and reduce fuel loads in four test areas within Mission Trail Nature Preserve. This has been identified as 

implementation item of the Mission Trail Nature Preserve Master Plan.

Project # FPB 1415-07

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Invasive plants such as ivy and Genista dominate the landscape of various parts of MTNP and are difficult to eradicate by physical means. Goat 

grazing can reduce the level of these plants to a point where more conventional means can be used to eliminate the invasive plants from the 

Preserve. The grazing may also allow the desirable native plants that are being suppressed by the invasive plants to grow to their full 

potential.The goat grazing will also lead to a reduction in fuel loads and fire risk within the Preserve.

 Budget Impact/Other

This project is a pilot program to determine the overall effect of the goat grazing on the habitats of the Preserve. If successful, the project will be 

used annually through the Preserve, Annual cost: $10,000 per year.

Useful Life n/a

Project Name MTNP Vegetation Management (goats)

Category Park: Mission Trail

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $50,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

50,00010,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000Construction/Maintenance

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 50,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

20,00010,000 10,000GF:  Capital Improvements
10,00010,000Measure D
20,00010,000 10,000Unfunded

10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 50,000Total

Page 66



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Removal of large invasive trees, primarily eucalyptus and acacias, and other large non-native trees within Mission Trail Nature Preserve.This has 

been identified as an implementation item of the Mission Trail Nature Preserve Master Plan.

Project # FPB 1415-08

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Several large eucalyptus and acacia trees dominate the landscape in areas of Mission Trail Nature Preserve. These trees are quite large and 

require significant labor and equipment to remove. They are not native and are considered invasive species that need to be eradicated from the 

Preserve as directed in the MTNP Master Plan.

 Budget Impact/Other

This is a long term project with an expected annual cost of $15,000.

Useful Life n/a

Project Name MTNP Invasive Tree Management

Category Park: Mission Trail

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $75,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

75,00015,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000Construction/Maintenance

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

30,00015,000 15,000GF:  Capital Improvements
15,00015,000Measure D
30,00015,000 15,000Unfunded

15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 75,000Total

Page 67



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project entails: (1) Redesign and relocate the Rio Rd. pedestrian entry to MTNP from the current service road entrance to a raised boardwalk 

from the Serra Trail that connects with the pedestrian crosswalk and nearby bus stop on Rio Rd. east of the current entrance; (2) new landscaping 

of the Rio Rd. canter medians; (3) construction of a connecting pathway from MTNP to Rio Park.

Project # FPB 1415-09

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

The primary justification is to improve pedestrian and traffic safety on Rio Road. The Preserve amenities are protected and possibly enhanced by 

constructing a raised boardwalk instead of a compacted trail on grade through the wetlands area near Rio Rd.  New landscaping of the medians 

will beautify this significant entrance to Carmel that is also adjacent to one of the most popular tourist destinations in Carmel, the Carmel 

Mission. A connector trail from MTNP to Rio Park will fulfill a City Council goal of trail connectivity and also improve safety on Rio Rd. by 

diverting pedestrians off of the roadway.

 Budget Impact/Other

Minor mainteance costs associated with upkeep of the pathways and plantings.

Useful Life n/a

Project Name MTNP Rio Rd. Entrance Reconfiguration

Category Park: Mission Trail

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $100,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

20,00020,000Planning/Design
80,00080,000Construction/Maintenance

100,000 100,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

100,000100,000Measure D

100,000 100,000Total

Page 68



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Purchase of a beach rake and tractor to facilitate the removal of charcoal and other debris from Carmel Beach.

Project # FPB 1415-10

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

Cleanup of debris resulting from beach fires is a significant local issue. This machine will provide a means to collect charcoal remaining in fire 

pits as well as blown charoal surrounding the fire area. Other trash will also be collected in the process.

 Budget Impact/Other

There will be additional service and maintenance needs for this equipment due to the harsh beach environment. Additional staffing or contract 

labor will be required to operate the equipment on a routine basis.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Beach Rake

Category Equipment: PW Equip

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $90,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

90,00090,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

90,000 90,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

90,00090,000GF:  Capital Improvements

90,000 90,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

10,0005,000 5,000Maintenance
60,00030,000 30,000Staff Cost

35,000 35,000 70,000Total

Page 69



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Develop an electronic tree inventory and map of the Carmel urban forest using GPS and tree database software.

Project # FPB 1415-11

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

A digital tree inventory will allow staff to easily track tree removals, tree plantings, individual tree work histories by staff and contractors, and 

program future maintenance efforts. In the past Carmel’s lack of street address has been an obstacle for utilizing tree management software 

products. With the advent of digital mapping and more precise GPS products, a specific street address is no longer required. The City’s current 

grid pruning contractor has a free software product available to Carmel, but mapping the trees in the field is an expense.

 Budget Impact/Other

Developing the tree inventory for the database can be completed in one or several years. Additional cost may occur to add additional trees to the 

database each year.

Useful Life n/a

Project Name Digital Tree Database

Category Software: Subscriptions

Type Software or Subscription

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $26,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

19,5006,500 6,500 6,500Computer Software/Hardware

6,500 6,500 6,500 19,500Total

Prior

6,500

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

6,5006,500GF:  Capital Improvements
13,0006,500 6,500Unfunded

6,500 6,500 6,500 19,500Total

Prior

6,500

Total

Page 70



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Additional tree planting in the community in order to meet and exceed the current levels of trees being removed annually from Carmel's urban 

tree inventory. This project includes the cost of trees, soil and tree wells to encourage additional tree plantings.

Project # FPB 1415-12

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

This is a requirement of the Forest Management Plan. Data from the annual tree inventory indicates a loss of trees, particularly upper canopy 

trees, over time. Additonal tree planting over time, along with increased watering support, will lead to more trees growing in the forest and 

ensure that Carmel's urban forest has a strong future.

 Budget Impact/Other

This project is supported by having a new water truck (project PW-1213-06) and additional staffing and/or contract labor for tree watering and 

maintenance.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Urban Forest Rehabilitation

Category Unassigned

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $30,000

Account #

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

25,0005,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000Other

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 25,000Total

Prior

5,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

10,0005,000 5,000GF:  Capital Improvements
5,0005,000Measure D

10,0005,000 5,000Unfunded

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 25,000Total

Prior

5,000

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

80,00080,000Other (Insurance, Utilities)
250,00050,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000Staff Cost

50,000 130,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 330,000Total

Page 71



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Purchase one F-550 truck body/chassis with a chipper box and other required accessories (radio, reflectors, strobe lights).

Project # FPB-1112-04

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The current chipper truck is 19 years old (1994) and is approaching its economic and functional life expectancy. It is the primary vehicle used by 

the city forestry staff to maintain Carmel's urban forest and park areas. Heavy loads and a chipper trailer are regularly hauled by this unit and it is 

vitally important for this vehicle to be mechanically and structurally sound to safely perform its duties.

 Budget Impact/Other

Fuel and maintenance costs associated with the chipper are included as part of vehicle and equipment maintenance.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name F550/chipper

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $68,000

Account # 13-88626

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

68,00068,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

68,000 68,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

68,00068,000GF:  Capital Improvements

68,000 68,000Total

Page 72



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Many of the hardware and wood elements of the stairs along the waterfront are showing significant degradation due to salt exposure, oxidation 

and age. Perioic inspections by a structural engineer will also be included to assure the soundness and safety of the beach stairs.

Project # FPB-1213-01

Urgency 1 Critical

 Justification

Replacement is necessary to maintain safe public access to Carmel Beach.  Continued degradation of the hardware and stair materials will lead to 

the increased risk of failure to key components resulting in closure of beach access and possible injury to the public.

 Budget Impact/Other

Minor repairs to stairs are performed as needed and absorbed as part of the operational budget with repairs made by staff or outside labor as 

warranted.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Beach Stair Maintenance

Category Beach

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $144,000

Account # 13-89627

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

120,00024,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000Construction/Maintenance

24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 120,000Total

Prior

24,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

48,00024,000 24,000GF:  Capital Improvements
24,00024,000Measure D
48,00024,000 24,000Unfunded

24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 24,000 120,000Total

Prior

24,000

Total

Page 73



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of the old metal tank and upgrades to pump system to facilitate use by emergency equipment and for other city purposes.

Project # FPB-1213-02

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

This currently an under utilized facility with a low level of use. Improvements will make this facility suitable for multiple users and retain its 

function as an alternate source of non-potable water within the city.

 Budget Impact/Other

Continued degradation or lack of maintenance will result in an increased risk of failure to key components and total loss of use.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Mission Trail Park Water Tank

Category Park: Mission Trail

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $270,000

Account # 13-89651

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

270,000270,000Construction/Maintenance

270,000 270,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

270,000270,000GF:  Capital Improvements

270,000 270,000Total

Page 74



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Each fire basket is large enough for a legal fire and is made of metal screen with handles for carrying the basket; two people can even carry it with 

the firewood inside. The screen holes are large enough to facilitate air flow but small enough to collect most of the charcoal from the fire. To use 

it, the basket is nestled down into the sand and a fire is built inside. When the fire is done or needs to be extinguished, water is poured onto the 

coals and the basket is lifted with the charcoal inside to a disposal site. The idea is to still allow fires, but to have the user be part of the cleanup 

program. Cost per basket: approx. $250 to $300 each.

Project # FPB-1213-04

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Currently fires are allowed on the beach south of Tenth Ave. and they have to be in compliance with several fire 
management rules. There is no 

regulation on the number of fires or responsibility for cleanup of the fire pits.
Fires and charcoal continues to be a topic of discussion. It is 

hoped that this concept can be developed into a 
way to manage fires and charcoal cleanup on the beach.

 Budget Impact/Other

No change at this time. Potential savings in charcoal cleanup program, but this may be offset by management of the basket program. Full 

implementation with possible fees and/or loss of deposits, if any, may also offset management costs.

Useful Life 5 years

Project Name Beach Fire Baskets

Category Beach

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $37,500

Account # 13-89652

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

37,5007,500 7,500 5,000 5,000 12,500Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

7,500 7,500 5,000 5,000 12,500 37,500Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

7,5007,500Donor Opportunity
17,5005,000 12,500GF:  Capital Improvements

5,0005,000Measure D
7,5007,500Unfunded

7,500 7,500 5,000 5,000 12,500 37,500Total

Page 75



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Development of a plan for public use of Rio Park. The 6.24 acre Rio Park property was purchased in 1990 and is outside the city limits on the 

southern edge of Carmel-by-the-Sea near the Carmel Mission. Part of the property is currently used for material storage, project staging, and 

parking for city contractors. The remaining area is open space, willow groves, and riparian habitat; The parcel extends south across the Carmel 

River and borders the wastewater treatment plant. The property was paid off in 2008 and there is a deposit account with approximately $140,000 

specifically for future development of the park.

Project # FPB-1213-05

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

This property is an under used city facility with the potential for a variety of active and passive uses by the public.

 Budget Impact/Other

No operating budget impact from the project design but future park improvements, if any, may have ongoing maintenance costs.  Partial or full 

development of Rio Park will require additional staffing and/or additional maintenance contracts with their associated costs. Additional 

equipment and vehicle may also be required.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Rio Park Improvements

Category Park Improvements

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $140,000

Account # 13-89653

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

40,00040,000Planning/Design
100,00050,000 50,000Construction/Maintenance

40,000 50,000 50,000 140,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

40,00040,000GF:  Capital Improvements
100,00050,000 50,000Measure D

40,000 50,000 50,000 140,000Total

Page 76



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project includes the removal of the existing temporary restroom facility and the construction of a new facility.  The project was approved by 

the Planning Commission in November 2012 and the City Council authorized $48,500 to be spent on construction drawings.  The funding will 

come from Measure D.  The City has applied for a grant from the Coastal Conservancy and expects to receive a minimum of $100,000 to assist 

with the estimated $200,000-300,000 construction cost.

Project # FPB-1213-06

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Carmel Beach is a highly popular visitor destination and is world renowned for its scenic beauty. The Scenic Pathway offers a unique pedestrian 

experience as it meanders along the beach bluffs. The pathway is heavily used, providing a complementary experience to the sandy beach. The 

City’s General Plan contains numerous polices regarding maintaining and enhancing access and recreational opportunities in this area.

Goal G4-3 of the General Plan encourages the City to provide adequate facilities to serve the needs of the public along the beach. Policy P4-41 

states, "Retain the current second restroom facility at Santa Lucia Avenue until it can be replaced by a permanent site."  Temporary restrooms 

were installed near the intersection of Scenic Road and Santa Lucia Avenue.

 Budget Impact/Other

Cleaning crew is estimated to cost $13,300 annually for service three times per day, paper product supplies, and minor maintenance.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Scenic Rd. Restrooms

Category Beach

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $329,182

Account # 13-89430

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

150,000150,000Construction/Maintenance

150,000 150,000Total

Prior

179,182

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

150,000150,000Grants

150,000 150,000Total

Prior

179,182

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

66,50013,300 13,300 13,300 13,300 13,300Maintenance

13,300 13,300 13,300 13,300 13,300 66,500Total

Page 77



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Replacement of the Forester's pickup truck (Unit #2).

Project # FPB-1213-07

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The current Forester truck is 12 years old (2000) and is approaching its economic life expectancy.  It is the primary vehicle used by the City 

Forester to maintain Carmel’s urban forest.

 Budget Impact/Other

The cost of the new truck will be offset by maintenance costs associated with this vehicle.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name Replace Forester Truck

Category Vehicles

Type Equipment

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $35,000

Account # 13-88628

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

35,00035,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

35,000 35,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

30,00030,000GF:  Capital Improvements

30,000 30,000Total

Page 78



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Design, construction, and installation of new signs along the waterfront area in order to consolidate and clarify the rules and regulations that 

apply to waterfront visitors and to develop a new sign program for the waterfront that is an attractive, functional, durable and a legible method of 

presenting the beach rules and regulations.  The goal is to improve awareness and compliance with the rules. This project would include a design 

process and review by the Forest and Beach and the Planning Commissions before implementation.

Project # FPB-1213-08

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Current signage along the waterfront from 4th Ave. to Martin Way is a mix of sizes, materials and styles that try to convey the rules and 

information for beach visitors. Some of the signs are not obvious and are placed in odd places that make them easy to miss. The General Plan 

directs the City to "Establish a uniform signage program for the beach and bluffs to better inform beach users of regulations governing activities 

on the beach." (O4-5).
 Other parks such as Mission Trail Nature Preserve could also use new signage that provides a map and information on 

the park habitat and history.

 Budget Impact/Other

Existing signs are replaced on an as needed basis depending on the condition of the sign.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Waterfront Area Signs

Category Beach

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $42,000

Account # 13-89654

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

42,00032,000 10,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

32,000 10,000 42,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

32,00032,000Measure D
10,00010,000Unfunded

32,000 10,000 42,000Total

Page 79



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the removal of non-native species at the Dunes including ice plant, acacia and invasive grasses and the planting of native 

species, including 100 Tidestrom lupine plants at ten locations at North Dunes. The North Dunes restoration plan outlines a phased approach to 

the restoration process.

Project # FPB-1314-02

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

The Del Mar Master Plan and the North Dunes and Del Mar Dunes Habitat Restoration Plan addresses management policies and practices related 

to the Dunes including ensuring that long-term management activities maintain the natural dune ecology of Carmel Beach in a manner consistent 

with public safety; protection and enhancement of the fragile plants and fauna in the Dunes against any significant disruption of habitat values; 

and identify, protect and manage Environmentally Sensitive Habitat Areas to ensure their long-term integrity and the biological productivity of 

these habitats.

 Budget Impact/Other

Minor maintenance costs are currently included within the operating budget, including grant funding. Volunteer efforts also contribute to the 

removal of invasive plants. However, additional funding would pay for improvements as fencing, propagation and planting, removal of invasive 

plants and annual required monitoring.

Useful Life 5 years

Project Name Dunes Habitat Restoration

Category Park Improvements

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $110,500

Account # 13-87602

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

86,00016,000 16,000 16,000 19,000 19,000Construction/Maintenance

16,000 16,000 16,000 19,000 19,000 86,000Total

Prior

24,500

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

67,00016,000 16,000 16,000 19,000Grants

16,000 16,000 16,000 19,000 67,000Total

Prior

24,500

Total

Page 80



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the installation of a cistern beneath the parking lot at City Hall for irrigation of the installed landscape improvements 

completed in fiscal year 2012-13.

Project # FPB-1314-03

Urgency 3 Important

 Justification

Water conservation is a Council adopted goal for year 2014 and the use of the cistern would allow for efficient irrigation of the City Hall 

landscaping. A design component of the landscape renovation at City Hall included the installation of a cistern beneath the parking lot to capture 

rainwater from the roof gutters for irrigation of the plants. The water is currently being captured to a central point ajacent to the parking lot. 

Electrical conduit is also in place to support the electric needs of the pump system

 Budget Impact/Other

Bi-annual cleaning of the cistern and pump service would be required. Rebates by water purveyors would be sought for this project.

Useful Life 15 years

Project Name City Hall Cistern

Category Equipment: Miscellaneous

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $25,000

Account # 13-89428

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

25,00025,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

25,000 25,000Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

25,00025,000Grants

25,000 25,000Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

3,0001,500 1,500Maintenance

1,500 1,500 3,000Total

Page 81



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Based on a new shoreline assessment, various site improvements will be addressed along the Carmel Beach waterfront. These improvements will 

entail purchasing and planting of new plant material, irrigation improvements, mulching, replacement of rails, removal of old and overgrown 

plants, iceplant removal, pathway repairs and improvements, and a variety of other maintenance needs.

Project # FPB-1314-04

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Implementation of the Shoreline Management Plan.  An assessment will identify any aesthetic and safety improvements that need to be made to 

the beach and pathway. Once improvements are identified and prioritized, annual maintenance efforts will be included as part of the operational 

budget.

 Budget Impact/Other

Once improvements are identified and prioritized, annual maintenance efforts willl  be included as part of the operational budget to address  

repairs and improvements that may arise throughout the year as well as to maintain any improvements made in the prior year.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Shoreline Assessment and Implementation

Category Beach

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $70,000

Account # 13-89649

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

50,00015,000 15,000 10,000 10,000Construction/Maintenance

15,000 15,000 10,000 10,000 50,000Total

Prior

20,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

50,00015,000 15,000 10,000 10,000Grants

15,000 15,000 10,000 10,000 50,000Total

Prior

20,000

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

25,0005,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000Maintenance

5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 25,000Total

Prior

5,000

Total

Page 82



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

Construction of a new stairway and a properly graded ramp for pedestrian access at the Mtn. View entrance into Mission Trail Nature Preserve.

Project # FPB-1314-05

Urgency 2 Very Important

 Justification

Currently, access into MTNP at the Mtn. View entrance is via a slippery slope of decomposed granite or a 20 year old, worn and failing 

landscape timber stairway. A new properly constructed stair system and a properly graded ramp will allow visitors to safely negotiate this 

difficult section of trail.

 Budget Impact/Other

Anticipate a bi-annual maintenance cost between $500 -$800 to maintain the new stairs and ramp.

Useful Life 25 years

Project Name Mission Trail Entrance

Category Park: Mission Trail

Type Improvement

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $48,000

Account # 13-89650

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

40,00040,000Construction/Maintenance

40,000 40,000Total

Prior

8,000

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

40,00040,000Measure D

40,000 40,000Total

Prior

8,000

Total

TotalBudget Items '14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19

1,600800 800Maintenance

800 800 1,600Total

Page 83



FY 2014-2015 Projects

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, CA

'14/'15 '18/'19thru

 Description

This project involves the refurbishment of existing trash cans that are damaged or in need of repair as well as the addition of new trash cans 

designed to encourage recycling.

Project # FPB-1314-06

Urgency 4 Less Important

 Justification

There are about 200 trash cans throughout the City, many of which are in need of repair or replacement due to age and use.  Many of these trash 

cans do not encourage recycling as all materials are comingled together.  Various models of trash cans were researched.  A  pilot program is 

underway to increase recycling citywide.

 Budget Impact/Other

The replacement of a current trash can costs about $300 in materials and staff labor.  New trash cans can cost $3,000. Sources of funding include 

the franchise agreement, grants and donor opportunities.

Useful Life 10 years

Project Name Trash Can Refurbishment and Replacement

Category Unassigned

Type Maintenance

Contact Public Srvs Dir.

Department Srvs: Forest, Parks, & Beach

Total Project Cost: $62,500

Account # 13-89655

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Expenditures

15,00015,000Equip/Vehicles/Furnishings

15,000 15,000Total

Prior

47,500

Total

Total'14/'15 '15/'16 '16/'17 '17/'18 '18/'19Funding Sources

7,5007,500Grants
22,5007,500 15,000Unfunded

15,000 15,000 30,000Total

Prior

32,500

Total

Page 84


	PC Agenda 041714
	VII.1. PC Minutes - 031114
	VII.2. PC Minutes - 032514
	VII.3. AD 14-02 (Bishop)
	VII.4. DS 14-13 (Assemi)
	IX.1. DS 13-120 (Tope)
	IX.2. DS 14-14 (Hawley)
	IX.3. DS 13-149 (Sturdivant)
	IX.4. DR 14-08 (Bell)
	IX.5. UP 14-03 (Tea House)
	IX.6. UP 14-09 (Windy Oaks)
	IX.7. UP 14-04 (High Tide Bar)
	IX.8. CIP FY14/15 Consistency



